

State of Hawai'i

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. COO 2019-21

FOR

PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

ISSUED DATE: April 9, 2019

DUE DATE: May 10, 2019, 2:00 p.m. HST

The Office of Hawaiian Affairs 560 N. Nimitz Highway, Suite 200 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817

Notice to Interested Parties: Offerors interested in submitting a proposal are encouraged to register your company by completing the Registration Form and submitting it to the OHA's RFP Coordinator via email, mail and/or hand delivery. If you do not register your company, you will not receive addenda, if any, and your offer may be rejected and not considered for award. <u>See</u> Attachment 4 – RFP Registration Form.

Notice to Offerors (Chapter 103D, Hawai'i Revised Statutes)

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (hereinafter "RFP") No. RFP COO 2019-21

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to Chapter 103D, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended, (hereinafter "HRS"), the Office of Hawaiian Affairs (hereinafter "OHA"), will be accepting sealed proposals for a Project Management professional to provide consulting, training, coaching, mentoring, and monitoring services to the OHA.

This RFP may be picked up at the OHA's Main Reception Desk on Oahu located at 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817 or downloaded from either the OHA website at: https://www.oha.org/solicitations or the State Procurement Office (hereinafter "SPO") website at https://hands.ehawaii.gov/hands/, beginning Tuesday, April 9, 2019. Interested offerors must have experience with standard Project Management methodologies and frameworks, including but not limited to the traditional or "Waterfall" methodology.

The OHA's Procurement Unit will conduct a Pre-Proposal Conference from 10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. Hawaii Standard Time (hereinafter "HST") at the OHA, 560 North Nimitz Highway, Iwikauikaua Conference Room, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817, on Wednesday, April 17, 2019. The OHA strongly recommends that all interested offerors attend. For those interested in attending via conference call, please contact the RFP Coordinator listed below no later than 2:00 p.m. HST, Monday, April 15, 2019.

Sealed proposals will be received at the OHA's Reception Desk at 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817 until 2:00 p.m. HST, Friday, May 10, 2019. Electronic mail and facsimile transmissions will not be accepted. The official time will be that which is recorded by the time stamp clock of the OHA for hand-delivered proposals. Deliveries by private mail services, such as Federal Express, will be considered hand deliveries. All mail-in proposals delivered/postmarked by the United States Postal Service (hereinafter "USPS") must be received no later than 2:00 p.m. HST, Friday, May 10, 2019 at the OHA's office.

The OHA reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to accept any proposal in whole or in part when in the best interest of the OHA and the State. Questions relating to this solicitation will be directed to the RFP Coordinator, Miki Cachola Lene, at (808) 594-1993.

OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS Kamana'opono M. Crabbe, Ph.D. Ka Pouhana, Chief Executive Officer, Head of Purchasing Agency

Table of Contents

Section 1 – Administrative Overview	3
Section 2 – Scope of Services	14
Section 3 – Proposal Format and Instructions	28
Section 4 – Proposal Evaluation & Award	36
Section 5 – Attachments	41
Attachment 1 - Proposal Submittal Checklist	
Attachment 2 - Acknowledgement of Addenda	
Attachment 3 - Wage Certificate Form for Service Contract	
Attachment 4 - RFP Registration Form	
Attachment 5 - Sample Cover Letter	
Attachment 6 - Sample Contract for Goods and Services Based Upon Con Proposals	mpetitive Sealed
Attachment 7 - Sample of Contract – Attachment S1, Scope of Services	
Attachment 8 - Sample of Contract - Attachment S2, Compensation	
Attachment 9 - Sample of Contract - Attachment S3, Time of Performance	ce
Attachment 10 - Sample of Contract - Attachment S4, Special Condition	S
Attachment 11 - General Conditions, OHA-2018 103D General Conditio	ns
Attachment 12 - Holiday Schedule	
Attachment 13 - SPO-Form 22	

Section 1 – Administrative Overview

I. Authority

In 1978, the Article XII of the State of Hawai'i Constitutional Convention established the Office of Hawaiian Affairs (hereinafter "OHA") to address the historical injustices and challenges arising out of those circumstances. Chapter 10 of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended, outlines the OHA's duties and purposes, including promoting and protecting the rights of Native Hawaiians.

The OHA is a semi-autonomous public agency of the State of Hawai'i, with the legal mandate of bettering the conditions of Native Hawaiians. The OHA's mission is "To mālama (protect) Hawai'i's people and environmental resources and the OHA's assets toward ensuring the perpetuation of the culture, the enhancement of lifestyle, and the protection of entitlements of Native Hawaiians while enabling the building of a strong and healthy Hawaiian people and nation, recognized nationally and internationally."

The OHA seeks to competitively procure a Project Management professional to provide consulting, training, coaching, mentoring, and monitoring services to the OHA.

A determination has been made that the OHA is unable to secure these services through a low bid process. Factors included in the determination are: 1) price is not the primary consideration in determining an award; 2) the resulting Contract may need to be other than a fixed price type; 3) the specifications for the services cannot be sufficiently described through low bid process; 4) oral or written discussion need to be conducted with interested offeror concerning their proposals; 5) interested offerors may need to revise their proposal, including price; and 6) the award needs to be based on a comparative evaluation in order to determine the most advantageous offering to the OHA. To that end, a low bid process is not practicable to the OHA to secure a project management professional.

This RFP is issued under the provisions of Chapter 103D, HRS, as amended, and its related administrative rules. Interested offerors are charged with presumptive knowledge of all requirements of the cited authorities. Submission of a valid executed proposal by any interested offeror will constitute admission of such knowledge on the part of such interested offeror.

II. RFP Organization

This RFP is organized into five (5) sections:

Section 1 Administrative Overview – Provides interested offerors with an overview of the procurement and contracting process.

Section 2 Scope of Work and Specification – Provides interested offeror with a general description of the tasks to be performed, delineates interested offeror's responsibilities, and defines deliverables as applicable.

Section 3 Proposal Form and Instruction – Describes the required format and content for the proposal.

Section 4 Proposal Evaluation & Award – Describes how proposals will be evaluated.

Section 5 Attachments

III. Contracting Office

The Contracting Office is responsible for overseeing the procurement and issuing the Contract resulting from this RFP. The Contracting Office is:

Office of Hawaiian Affairs
Procurement Unit
560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817
Telephone: 594-1888

The RFP Coordinator or his/her designated representative is listed below:

Miki Cachola Lene Office of Hawaiian Affairs Procurement Unit 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817

Telephone: (808) 594-1993 Email: mikic@oha.org

Fax: (808) 594-1863

The OHA reserves the right to change the RFP Coordinator without prior written notice.

The Chief Operating Officer is the program responsible for administering and monitoring the Contract. The designated Contract Administrator or his/her designated representative is responsible for monitoring the activities performed under the Contract and is identified as:

Sylvia M. Hussey, Chief Operating Officer Office of Hawaiian Affairs Procurement Unit 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817 Any changes to the Contract Administrator or his/her designated representative will be provided in writing to the Successful Offeror. The OHA reserves the right to make the changes to the Contract Administrator.

Once the Successful Offeror has received the Notice to Proceed, all communications regarding approval, reports, and requests should be directed to the Contract Administrator.

IV. Terms and Acronyms

BAFO	Best and Final Offer
CEO	Chief Executive Officer
COGS	Certificate of Good Standing
CPO	OHA Chief Procurement Officer
DCCA	Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
FY	Fiscal Year
GET	General Excise Tax
HAR	Hawai'i Administrative Rules
HCE	Hawai'i Compliance Express
HOPA	Head of Purchasing Agency
HRS	Hawai'i Revised Statues
HST	Hawai'i Standard Time
KP	Ka Pouhana/Chief Executive Officer
Kūkākūkā	Discussion
OHA	Office of Hawaiian Affairs
RFP	Request for Proposals
STATE	State of Hawai'i, including its department, agencies, and
	political subdivisions
SOP	Standard Operating Procedures
SPO	State Procurement Office
TMK	Tax Map Key
USPS	United States Postal Service

V. Procurement Timeline

Activity	Scheduled Dates	_
A CI1V1IV	Schedilled Dates	Q

Release of Request for Proposal	Tuesday, April 9, 2019
Pre-Proposal Conference	Wednesday, April 17, 2019, 10:00 a.m. HST
Due Date to Submit Written Inquires	Thursday, April 18, 2019, 4:30 p.m. HST
OHA's Response to Written inquires	Tuesday, April 23, 2019
Proposal Due Date/Time	Friday, May 10, 2019, 2:00 p.m. HST
Proposal Evaluation	May 13-17, 2019
Discussion with Priority Listed Offerors	TBD
(if necessary)	
Best and Final Offer (if necessary)	TBD

Activity	Scheduled Dates
Notice of Award	May 2019
Contract Execution	June 2019
Start of Services	July 1, 2019

The OHA reserves the right to amend or revise the timeline without prior written notice when it is in the best interest of the OHA.

VI. Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Inspection

The OHA's Procurement Unit will conduct a Pre-Proposal Conference from 10:00 - 11:00 a.m. HST at the OHA, 560 North Nimitz Highway, Hi'iakaikapoliopele Conference Room, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817 on Wednesday, April 17, 2019. The OHA strongly recommends that all interested offerors attend. For those interested in attending via conference call, please contact the RFP Coordinator no later than Monday, April 15, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. HST.

Impromptu questions will be permitted at the Pre-Proposal Conference and verbal answers provided. Verbal answers provided by the OHA are not binding and are only intended to provide general direction. Formal written responses to substantive questions will be issued as addendum to this RFP. Any changes required will also be issued as an addendum to this RFP.

VII. Submission of Questions

Interested offerors may submit questions to the RFP Coordinator identified in Section 1. Item III of this RFP. The deadline for submission of written questions is Tuesday, April 23, 2019 at 4:30 p.m. HST. All written questions will be responded to in an addendum to this RFP and posted to the OHA's website and the SPO website no later than the "OHA's Response to Questions" date identified in Section 1. Item V. Procurement Timeline. The OHA does not guarantee receipt of questions submitted via electronic mail.

The only official position of the OHA is that which is stated in writing and issued in this RFP and/or as addenda to this RFP. No other means of communication, whether oral or written, will be construed as a formal or official response/statement and may not be relied upon as such.

The interested offerors are advised that anything discussed at the Pre-Proposal Conference will not change any part of this RFP. All changes and/or clarifications to this RFP will be done in the form of an addendum to this RFP.

VIII. Submission of Sealed Proposal

A. <u>Form/Formats.</u> Proposal forms and formats such as price proposal are included in Section 5- Attachments to this RFP.

B. <u>Proposal Submittal.</u> Proposals must be postmarked by the USPS or hand delivered by the date and time designated in this RFP. Any proposals post-marked or received after the designated date and time will be rejected. Electronic submissions such as electronic mail and facsimile transmissions will not be accepted.

The register of proposals and proposals will be open to public inspection after the award of the Contract.

C. <u>Pre-opening Modification or Withdrawal.</u> All proposals may be modified or withdrawn prior to the deadline for submittal by written notice to modify or withdraw the proposal. All requests for modification will be sealed, accompanied by the actual modification to the proposals, and signed by an authorized signatory.

The written request must be submitted to the OHA, Procurement Unit, 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200, Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817 and time stamped by the OHA. Modifications and/or withdrawals will be clearly marked and must be received by the OHA no later than Friday, May 10, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. HST.

D. Wages and Labor Law Compliance. Prior to entering into a Contract in excess of \$25,000, an interested offeror will certify that it complies with section 103-55, HRS, as amended, entitled Wages, hours, and working condition of employees of contractors performing services. Section 103-55, HRS, provides that the services to be performed will be performed by employees paid at wages not less than wages paid to public officers and employees for similar work. Interested offerors are further advised that in the event of an increase in wages for public employees performing similar work during the period of the Contract, the Successful Offeror will be obligated to provide such increased wages.

Interested offerors will complete and submit the attached Wage Certificate certifying that the services required will be performed pursuant to section 103-55, HRS. <u>See</u> Attachment 3.

The Successful Offeror will be further obligated to notify his/her employees performing work under this Contract regarding the provisions of section 103-55, HRS, and current wage rates for public employees performing similar work. The Successful Offeror may meet this obligation by posting a written notice to this effect in the Successful Offeror's place of business in an area accessible to all employees.

Interested offerors are strongly encouraged to account for salary increases as posted by the State of Hawai'i Department of Human Resources Development (hereinafter "DHRD"). The OHA will consider requests for increases as a result of wage increases to public officers and employees during the Contract period or any option period that is not published. At the release of this solicitation, the effective wages through July 1, 2018 for state employees performing similar work have been published by the DHRD.

If wages increase after the execution of the Contract, the Successful Offeror may request an increase in Contract price in order to correspondingly increase the wages of the offeror's employees performing the work, including any increase in costs for benefits required by law that are automatically increased as a result of increased wages, such as federal old-age benefits, workers' compensation, temporary disability insurance, unemployment insurance, and prepaid health insurance.

The Successful Offeror will not be paid for any reimbursement of retroactive pay negotiated by the State. The Successful Offeror's request for the increase must meet the following criteria:

- 1. At the time of the offer, if the Successful Offeror's hourly wage rate is greater than the prevailing State wage, the Successful Offeror's requests for increase will not be considered.
- 2. At the time of the request, the Successful Offeror must or must have provided documentation to show that it is in compliance with section 103-55, HRS (i.e., its employees are being paid no less than the known wage rates of a State position). Documentation will include the employee's payroll records and a statement that the employees are being utilized for this Contract.
- 3. Request for an increase must be made in writing to the OHA on a timely basis as follows:
 - a. Request for increase for the initial Contract period must be made as soon as practicable after the State wage agreements are made public. Approved requests will be retroactive to the date of increase for the State employees with adequate documentation that the Successful Offeror provided its employees a wage increase.
 - b. To obtain the current wage information, download the information from the Department of Human Resources Development's website at the following address:

http://dhrd.hawaii.gov/state-hr-professionals/class-and-comp/salary-schedules/

It is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to comply with section 103-55, HRS, as applicable.

E. <u>Confidential Information</u>. If an interested offeror believes that any portion of a proposal contains information that should be withheld as confidential, the interested offeror will request in writing nondisclosure of designated proprietary data to be kept confidential and provide justification to support the designation of confidentiality. Such data will accompany the proposal, be clearly marked as such, and will be readily separable from the proposal documents to facilitate the eventual public inspection of

the non-confidential section of the proposal documents. Note that price and the provisions of the minimum required services are not considered confidential and will not be withheld.

Interested offerors who choose to identify portions of their proposal as confidential will be responsible to ensure that the minimum services are not included. The OHA will not make any determination of confidentiality for the interested offeror.

If the proposal is marked confidential in its entirety, the OHA will not make a determination of confidentiality and will refer any request for information to the OHA Corporate Counsel and/or the State's Office of Information Practices.

F. Exceptions. Interested offerors will list any exceptions taken to the terms, conditions, specifications, or other requirements listed herein. Interested offerors must reference the RFP section where the exception is taken and provide a description of the exception taken and any proposed alternative. The OHA will retain the right to grant exceptions to discretionary policies. Request for exceptions to the State, Federal, or local laws will not be approved.

IX. Discussions with Offerors Prior to Proposal Submissions

Discussion may be conducted with the interested offeror to promote understanding of the OHA's requirements.

X. Opening of Proposals

Upon the receipt of proposals by the OHA at the designated location, the proposal, any modification to proposals, and withdrawals of proposals will be date and time-stamped. All documents received will be held in a secure place by the OHA and will not be examined for evaluation purposes until the submittal deadline. The procurement file will be open to public inspection after a contract has been awarded and executed by all parties. Sealed proposals will not be opened at a public proposal opening.

XI. Additional Materials and Documentation

Proposal samples or descriptive literature should not be submitted unless specifically requested within the RFP. Interested offerors may include up to five (5) pages of documentations, literatures, samples, or brochures of related services, which demonstrates experiences to related consultant services.

XII. RFP Amendments

The OHA reserves the right to amend this RFP at any time prior to the proposal submission deadline. Interested offerors will be notified of the availability of amendments through verbal or written communications. All amendments to this RFP will be posted to the OHA

website https://www.oha.org/solicitations and SPO website https://hands.ehawaii.gov/hands/.

XIII. Additional Terms and Conditions

The OHA reserves the right to add terms and conditions during contract negotiation and discussions. These terms and conditions may be applicable to the scope of the RFP and will not affect the proposal evaluation.

XIV. Trade Secrets/Confidential Information

If an interested offeror believes that any portion of their proposal contains information that should be withheld as confidential, the interested offeror will provide a written request for nondisclosure of designated proprietary data to be kept confidential and provide justification to support confidentiality. Such data will accompany the proposal, will be clearly marked, and will be readily separable from the proposal packet to facilitate eventual public inspection of the non-confidential sections of the proposal packet. Note that price is not considered confidential and will not be withheld.

XV. Intellectual Property Rights

The OHA reserves the right to unlimited, irrevocable, worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free, non-exclusive licenses to use, modify, reproduce, perform, release, display, create derivative works from the work product, to disclose the work product, and to transfer the intellectual property to third parties for the OHA's purposes.

The interested offeror understands that the information obtained from these efforts is the sole property of the OHA, that any use of the information must be approved by the OHA, and that any information and all materials used to complete the project will be returned to the OHA.

XVI. Cancellation of the Request for Proposals

The RFP may be canceled and any or all proposals rejected in whole or in part, without liability to the OHA, when it is determined to be in the best interest of the OHA.

XVII. Costs for Proposal Preparation and Verification

Any costs incurred by the interested offeror in preparing or submitting a proposal are the interested offeror's sole responsibility. Any cost incurred by the Successful Offeror prior to the execution of a Contract is not eligible for reimbursement. Costs incurred in connection with the review, inspection and verification of information provided in the RFP will be the interested offeror's sole responsibility.

Interested offerors will ensure that the OHA is provided with the written authorization(s) necessary to verify information provided in the interested offeror's proposal.

XVIII. Rejection of Proposals

The OHA reserves the right to consider as acceptable and responsive only those proposals submitted in accordance with all requirements set forth in this RFP and which demonstrate an understanding of the problems involved and comply with the service specifications. Any proposal offering any other set of terms and conditions contradictory to those included in this RFP may be rejected without further notice.

A proposal may be automatically rejected for any one (1) or more of the following reasons:

- 1. Cancellation of solicitations and rejection of offers (HAR §3-122-95);
- 2. Cancellation of solicitation (HAR §3-122-96);
- 3. Rejection of offers (HAR §3-122-97);
- 4. Reporting of anti-competitive practices (HAR §3-122-191 to §3-122-196);
- 5. Rejection for inadequate accounting system (HRS §103D-314(2));
- 6. Late proposals (HAR §3-122-16.08);
- 7. Proposal not responsive (HAR §3-122-97(b) and HAR §3-122-97(c)); and
- 8. Offer not responsible (HAR §3-122-97(b) and HAR §3-122-97(c)).

XIX. Notice of Award

Any Contract arising out of this solicitation is subject to the approval by the Line of Business Director as to content, the OHA's Corporate Counsel as to form, the OHA's Chief Executive Officer (hereinafter "CEO") or designated signing authority, and is subject to the availability of funding. The CEO, Ka Pouhana (hereinafter "KP"), Head of Purchasing Agency (hereinafter "HOPA") are all one and the same and will be referred to as the "CEO".

The Successful Offeror will receive a Notice of Award which will indicate that the Successful Offeror has been selected to provide the services under this RFP.

No work is to be undertaken by the Successful Offeror prior to the Contract commencement date. The OHA is not liable for any work, contract, costs, expenses, loss of profits, or any damage whatsoever incurred by the Successful Offeror prior to the Contract commencement date as specified in the contract.

Pursuant to section 3-122-112, HAR, Responsibility of Offeror, the interested offeror will produce documents to the Procurement Officer to demonstrate compliance with this section. The Successful Offeror receiving the award will be required to enter into a formal written Contract with the OHA. The General Conditions of the Contract are attached and minimum service specifications are included herein. <u>See</u> Attachment 11.

XX. Protests

Pursuant to sections 103D-701, HRS, as amended, and 3-126-4 HAR, an actual or prospective offeror who is aggrieved in connection with the solicitation or award of a Contract may submit a protest. An actual or prospective offeror may protest the solicitation or award of services only for a serious violation of procurement policies and operational procedures. Only the following matters may be protested:

- 1. A state purchasing agency's failure to follow procedures established by chapter 103D, HRS, as amended.
- 2. A state purchasing agency's failure to follow any statute established by chapter 103D, HRS, as amended.
- 3. A state purchasing agency's failure to follow any procedure, requirement, or evaluation criterion in a request for proposals issued by the state purchasing agency.

The Notice of Protest will be mailed by USPS or hand delivered to the head of the OHA Contracting Office conducting the protested procurement and the Procurement Officer who is conducting the procurement as indicated below within five (5) working days after the aggrieved person knows or should have known of the facts giving rise thereto.

Provided that a protest based upon the content of the solicitation will be submitted in writing prior to the date set for receipt of offerors, a protest of an award or proposed award will be submitted within five (5) days after the posting of award of the Contract. Deliveries from other than USPS will be considered hand deliveries and considered submitted on the date of actual receipt by the OHA. Any notice of award letter(s), resulting from this solicitation will be posted on the Procurement Reporting System on the State Procurement Office website at https://hands.ehawaii.gov/hands/awards.

Head of OHA Contracting Office		Procurement Officer	
Name:	Kamana'opono M. Crabbe, Ph.D.	Name:	Phyllis Ono-Evangelista
Title:	Ka Pouhana, Chief Executive	Title:	Procurement Manager
	Officer, Head of Purchasing Agency		
Mailing:	Office of Hawaiian Affairs	Address:	Office of Hawaiian Affairs
Address:	560 North Nimitz Highway,		560 North Nimitz Highway,
	Suite 200		Suite 200
	Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817		Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817

XXI. Availability of Funds

The award of a Contract and any allowed renewal or extension thereof, are subject to the availability and allotment of the OHA funds, State and/or Federal funds.

XXII. Monitoring and Evaluation

The Successful Offeror's performance under the Contract will be monitored and evaluated by the Contract Administrator or his/her designated representative, the OHA's auditor, and/or other designated representatives.

Failure to comply with all material terms of the Contract may be cause for suspension or termination as provided in the General Conditions. The Successful Offeror may be required to submit additional written reports, including a corrective action plan, in response to monitoring conducted by the OHA. These additional reports will not be considered a change to the scope of work and will continue for a duration of time as deemed necessary by the OHA.

XXIII. General and Special Conditions of Contract

The General Conditions that will be imposed contractually are included as an attachment. See Attachment 11.

Special Conditions may be imposed by the OHA. The OHA reserves the right to make appropriate modifications to the quantity of items or reporting requirements contingent upon unforeseen conditions.

XXIV. Cost Principles

The OHA will utilize standard cost principles from Chapter 3-123, HAR, which are available on the SPO website. Nothing in this section will be construed to create an exemption from any cost principle arising under State and Federal laws.

XXV. Campaign Contributions by State and County Contractor Prohibited

If awarded a Contract in response to this solicitation, the Successful Offeror agrees to comply with Chapter 11, §11-355, HRS, which states that campaign contributions are prohibited from a State and County government contract during the term of the Contract if the Contract is paid with funds appropriated by the legislative body between the execution of the Contract through the completion of the Contract.

(END OF SECTION)

Section 2 – Scope of Services

I. Introduction

A. Project overview and history

As the Office of Hawaiian Affairs (hereinafter "OHA") embarks on its strategic planning process, it is seeking an individual or firm to serve as a consultant and mentor to assist the OHA Administration in the planning, adoption, and implementation of the Project Management process into the existing policies, procedures, and culture at OHA. The OHA is also seeking the individual or firm to provide training and coaching services to lead several sub-groups of OHA staff in various levels of Project Management training.

The OHA recently celebrated 40 years of working to better the conditions of Native Hawaiians. As the planning process for a new strategic plan begins, the OHA Administration has identified several key elements and best practices to integrate into organizational policies, procedures and culture, one of which is Project Management.

The OHA views Project Management as a process to facilitate further internal change, further enable the organization to collaborate internally, and maximize resources while maintaining a high standard of work. Project Management is the practice of initiating, planning, executing, controlling, and closing the work of a team to achieve specific goals and meet specific success criteria at the specified time. OHA requires a standard Project Management methodology, which can be customized and adapted to meet the diverse needs of the multi-faceted OHA divisions. Many current OHA staff have already received basic training based on the Project Management Institute's Project Management Body of Knowledge. Therefore, any additional training and processes would need to build on existing staff knowledge and skills.

The OHA has committed to organizing a Project Management process and implementing a Project Management workflow to integrate this high-level process to better manage projects and portfolios at the program, division and organizational level. The OHA's goal to infuse more Project Management concepts and optimal practices into the day-to-day and long-term organizational processes, does not require any formal Project Management certifications for OHA staff at the completion of the consulting, training, coaching, and mentoring.

The purpose of this RFP is to secure a qualified individual or firm to provide professional consulting, training, coaching, mentoring, and monitoring services relating to Project Management. The OHA is seeking proposals from qualified interested Offerors to work with the OHA to develop a project management process; provide basic project management training and coaching for a small number of staff; provide advanced project management training and coaching for all staff; and provide Portfolio Management training and coaching for all manager and director-level staff.

The Successful Offeror shall also assist the OHA with program and portfolio-level procedure assessment and review, along with assisting in the development of a short-term and long-term implementation plan to fully integrate the Project Management process into the existing organizational policies, procedures, and culture as a part of ongoing strategic planning.

The OHA aims to ensure consistency, efficiency, and overall management to assist in the integration of this Project Management curriculum and methodology to better deliver projects on time, within budget, and according to scope. The objective of the Project Management process is to establish an internal workflow to enable OHA staff to collaborate on agency-wide projects and allow for oversight and management of these projects on the programmatic and organizational-level.

B. Funding source and period of availability

Funds are subject to the biennial budget as approved by the OHA Board of Trustees and/or allocation by the Governor and State Legislature. Funding and period of availability may change upon written notice by the OHA.

It is understood that the Contract will not be binding, unless the OHA can document that there is an available and unexpended appropriation or balance of an appropriation over and above all outstanding contracts sufficient to cover the amount required by the Contract. Any Contract entered into as a result of this RFP is binding only to the extent that funds are certified as available and allocated and received by the OHA. The availability of funds in excess of the amount certified as available shall be contingent upon future appropriations or special fund revenues.

It has been determined that there are sufficient funds to pay for the initial term of the Contract and the funds necessary for the remaining terms of the Contract are likely to be available from the OHA. Pursuant to Chapter 103D-315, HRS, as amended, the OHA reserves the right to cancel the Contract when future funds are not available to support continuation of performance in subsequent Contract periods. Nothing in this RFP shall be interpreted to mean that the OHA shall be liable to pay for services provided.

II. General Requirements

A. Qualifying Requirements

- 1. The Successful Offeror will comply with section HRS §103D-601, as amended, entitled Cost Principles Rules Required.
- 2. The Successful Offeror must have no outstanding balances owing to the OHA. Exception may be granted by the CEO of the OHA for debts recently acquired and for debts for which a repayment plan has been approved by the CEO of the OHA.

- 3. Interested offerors are advised that if awarded a Contract, the Successful Offeror must furnish proof of compliance with the requirements of Section §3-122-112, HAR:
 - a. Chapter 237, General Excise Tax Law;
 - b. Chapter 383, Hawai'i Employment Security Law;
 - c. Chapter 386, Workers' Compensation Law;
 - d. Chapter 392, Temporary Disability Insurance;
 - e. Chapter 393, Prepaid Health Care Act; and
 - f. Certificate of Good Standing (hereinafter "COGS") for entities doing business in the State.
- 4. Be registered and incorporated or organized under the laws of the State of Hawai'i (hereinafter "Hawai'i business").

The Successful Offeror(s) will be one (1) of the following:

- a. <u>Hawai'i business</u>: A business entity referred to as a "Hawai'i business" is registered and incorporated or organized under the laws of the State of Hawai'i. As evidence of compliance, the Offeror will submit a CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING issued by the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division (hereinafter "DCCA"). A Hawai'i business doing business as a sole proprietorship is not required to register with the DCCA, and therefore not required to submit the certificate. A Successful Offeror's status as sole proprietor or other business entity and its business street address will be used to confirm that the Successful Offeror is a Hawai'i business.
- b. Be registered to do business in the State of Hawai'i (hereinafter "compliant non-Hawai'i business").

<u>Compliant non-Hawai'i business</u>: A business entity referred to as a "compliant non-Hawai'i business," is not incorporated or organized under the laws of the State of Hawai'i, but is registered to do business in the State. As evidence of compliance, the Offeror will submit a CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING.

5. Business Office

The Successful Offeror will have, at a minimum, a telephone number and electronic mail address from which it conducts business and be accessible by telephone from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. HST, for meetings, teleconferences, video conferences, concerns or requests that need immediate attention. An answering service is not acceptable. An office location, telephone number and electronic mail address will be identified in the interested offeror's proposal.

6. Certificate of Eligibility

The Successful Offeror will demonstrate compliance with the following:

- a. Tax Clearance Form A-6
- b. Department of Labor and Industrial Relation, Applications for Certificate of Compliance Form LIR#27; and
- c. Certificate of Good Standing issued by the DCCA and the Hawai'i Compliance Express (hereinafter 'HCE"), which allows businesses to register online through a simple wizard interface at:

https://vendors.ehawaii.gov/hce/splash/welcome.html

The HCE provides the applicant with a "Certificate of Vendor Compliance" with current compliance status as of the issuance date, accepted for both contracting purposes and final payment. Business that elect to use the new HCE services will be required to pay an annual fee of \$12.00 to the Hawai'i Information Consortium, LLC (hereinafter "HIC").

7. Indemnification

The Successful Offeror will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State of Hawai'i, the OHA, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees, from and against all liability, loss, damage, cost, and expense, including attorneys' fees, and all claims, suits, and demands arising out of or resulting from the acts or omission of the Successful Offeror or the Successful Offeror's officers, employees, agents or subcontractors.

8. Insurance Requirements

Within fifteen (15) days prior to the Contract start date, the Successful Offeror will furnish to the Contracting Office a valid certificate(s) of insurance as evidence of the existence of the following insurance coverage in the amount not less than the amounts specified. The insurance must be maintained in full force and effect throughout the entire performance period. Failure to maintain the required insurance is considered a material default of the Contract.

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance

Commercial general liability insurance coverage against claims for bodily injury and property damage arising out of all operations, activities, or contractual liability by the Successful Offeror, its employees, and subcontractors during the term of the Contract.

This insurance will include the following coverage and limits specified or required by any applicable law:

- i. Bodily injury and property damage coverage with a minimum of \$1,000,000 per occurrence;
- ii. Personal and advertising injury of \$1,000,000 per occurrence; and
- iii. With an aggregated limit of \$2,000,000.

The commercial general liability policy will be written on an occurrence basis and the policy will provide legal defense costs and expenses in addition to the limits of liability stated above. The Successful Offeror will be responsible for payment of any deductible applicable to this policy.

b. Automobile Liability Insurance

Automobile liability insurance covering owned, non-owned, leased, and hired vehicles with a minimum of \$1,000,000 for bodily injury for each person, \$1,000,000 for bodily injury for each accident, and \$1,000,000 for property damage for each accident.

c. Workmen's Compensation Coverage

The policy will include coverage required by the State of Hawai'i and include Part B coverage as follows: Employers Liability with limits of \$100,000 for each accident, \$500,000 disease policy limit, and \$100,000 disease policy limit per employee.

Insurance to include Employer's Liability. Both such coverages will apply to all employees of the Successful Offeror and to all employees of sub-contractors in case any sub-contractor fails to provide adequate similar protection for all its employees. Worker's Compensation must be issued by an admitted carrier authorized to do business in the State of Hawai'i.

d. Professional Liability Insurance

Professional liability insurance policy will be maintained with a limit of not less than \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and \$2,000,000.00 general aggregate which will provide for losses as a result of the Successful Offeror's negligent acts, errors or omissions.

e. The Certificate of Insurance for the required insurance coverages is required prior to commencement of services. The insurance policy required by this Contract will contain the following clauses:

- i. "The State of Hawai'i, the Office of Hawaiian Affairs, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents, and employees will be named as additional insured, except for Professional Responsibility Insurance and Workers Compensation Insurance as respects to operations performed for the State of Hawai'i and OHA under this Contract.
- ii. "It is agreed that any insurance maintained by OHA will apply in excess of, and not contribute with, insurance provided by this policy."

To satisfy the minimum coverage limits required by the Contract, the Successful Offeror may use an umbrella policy in addition to the mandatory insurance policies (i.e. General Liability Insurance, Automobile Insurance, and Workers Compensation) provided that the OHA approves, and the umbrella policy follows the underlying coverage forms.

The minimum insurance required shall be in full compliance with the Hawai'i Insurance Code throughout the entire term of the Contract, including all Supplemental Contracts.

Upon execution of the Contract, the Successful Offeror agrees to deposit with the OHA, a valid certificate(s) of insurance necessary to satisfy the OHA that the insurance provision of this Contract have been complied with and to keep such insurance in effect and the certificate(s) on deposit with the OHA during the entire term of this Contract. Upon request of the OHA, the Successful Offeror will be responsible for furnishing a copy of the policy or policies.

Failure of the Successful Offeror to provide and keep in full force and effect such insurance will constitute a material default under the Contract, entitling the OHA to exercise any or all remedies provided in the Contract for default of the Successful Offeror.

The procuring of any required policy or policies of insurance will not be construed to limit the Successful Offeror's liability hereunder or to fulfill the indemnification provisions of the Contract. Notwithstanding said policy or policies of insurance, the Successful Offeror will be obligated for the full and total amount of any damage, injury, or loss caused by the Successful Offeror's negligence or neglect in the provision of services under the Contract.

The OHA is a self-insured State agency. The Successful Offeror's insurance will be primary. Any insurance maintained by the State of Hawai'i and the OHA will apply in excess of, and will not contribute with insurance provided by the Successful Offeror.

The Successful Offeror will provide written notice to the OHA of any cancellation or change in provision thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date of any such cancellation or change.

f. Other Additional Insurance

The Successful Offeror may, at its own expense, obtain additional insurance coverage for further protection subject to the OHA's approval. Request for approval will include a description of the additional insurance coverage, premium and justification.

9. Minority/Women Business Participation (hereinafter "MBE/WBE")

Whenever possible, the interested offeror awarded the contract agrees to subcontract with minority-owned business enterprises and/or women-owned business enterprises that are recognized as such.

10. Using Best Effort to Fulfill Minority/Women Business Participation

In the event that the OHA has reasonable belief that the interested offeror will not use its best efforts to meet the MBE/WBE participation goal, the OHA reserves the right to cancel the Contract in whole or in part. Best efforts may be established by demonstrating that the interested offeror already is or is working towards being certified as an MBE/WBE or has contracted or solicited bid/quotes from subcontractors that are certified as MBE/WBE through the Small Business Administration.

B. Type of Contract

1. The Successful Offeror will be required to execute a Contract for Goods and Services Based on Competitive Sealed Proposals. See Attachment 6.

The Contract will be on a reimbursement basis. All costs incurred must be supported by verifiable evidence that payment was made (e.g. invoices and/or receipts). No profit or administrative mark-up will be allowed on project reimbursable expenses, including, without limitation, postage, supplies, and travel.

Subsequent to the award and within ten (10) days after the prescribed forms are presented for signature, the Successful Offeror will execute and deliver to the OHA a Contract in such number of copies as required by the OHA.

The Successful Offeror will be required to enter into a formal written Contract with the OHA in accordance with the laws, rules and regulations of the State of Hawai'i. The stated requirement appearing elsewhere in this RFP will be incorporated and will become part of the terms and conditions of the Contract.

By submission of a proposal, the interested offeror warrants and represents that they have read and are familiar with the contractual and service requirements set forth in the RFP and its attachments, the provisions of which are expressly incorporated into this RFP by reference.

All proposals will become the property of the OHA. The Successful Offeror's proposal will be incorporated in the resulting Contract by reference.

2. Subcontracting

No work or services will be subcontracted or assigned without the prior written approval of the OHA. No subcontract will under any circumstances relieve the Successful Offeror of his/her obligation and liability under contract with the OHA. All persons engaged in performing the work covered by the Contract will be considered employees of the Successful Offeror.

3. Contract Modification

The Contract may be modified only by a written supplemental contract signed by the OHA and the authorized signatory designated to sign contracts on behalf of the Successful Offeror as designated in a corporate resolution, if applicable.

4. Additional Services and Fees

The Successful Offeror and the OHA will negotiate for additional needed services and fees for work not described in the Contract by which may arise during the course of the Contract. Any agreement will be in writing, executed by all parties, and will be attached to the Contract as amendment to expire at the same time as the original Contract or subsequent period.

5. Laws, Rules, Ordinances and Regulations

Reference to Federal, State, City and County laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and standard specifications will include any amendment thereto effective as of the date of the RFP.

6. Bonds

No performance or payment bond is required.

C.	Multiple or Alternate Proposals (Refer to HAR §3-122-4) □ Allowed ⊠ Not allowed
D.	Single or Multiple Contract to be Awarded (Refer to HRS §103D-322) ⊠ Single □ Multiple □ Single & Multiple
Е.	Single or Multi-Term Contract to be Awarded (Refer to HRS §103D-315) ⊠ Single term (2 years or less) □ Multi-term (more than 2 years)

Initial term of contract: Twelve (12) months

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020

Length of each extension: Up to twelve months; may be less than 12 months

when it is in the best interest of the OHA

Maximum Length of Contact: Twenty-four (24) months

F. Condition for Contract Extensions

The initial period will commence on the Contract start date. The following Conditions must be met for an extension:

- 1. The Contract experienced cost saving and has unexpended fund available that can be used to provide additional goods and services; or
- 2. The OHA determines there is an ongoing need for the services and has funds to extend services not to exceed twelve (12) months. Contract extensions will be awarded as agreed upon in the Primary Contract. Exceptions will be granted upon satisfactory justification such as increase in cost of goods or services; and
- 3. A Supplemental Contract must be executed prior to expiration of the Primary Contract; and
- 4. The Successful Offeror must obtain the OHA's approval in writing.

The option to extend the Contract will be at the sole discretion of the OHA. The Contract will be extended at the same rates as proposed in the original proposal unless price adjustments are provided. Submission of a proposal constitutes acknowledgement of the interested offeror that the interested offeror is able and willing to contract for services for the duration of the Contract period. If the Successful Offeror is unwilling or unable to fulfill the scope of services described in the Contract, the OHA reserves the right to assign the costs of reprocurement to any payment owed under the Contract. These costs may include without limitations reproduction costs, staff time, and postage.

The Successful Offeror will provide the requested insurance information and a completed wage certificate. The Successful Offeror will pay the State of Hawai'i general excise tax and all other applicable taxes.

G. Contract price adjustments (other than wage rate increases)

Each proposal offered will be firm for a twelve (12) month period upon issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Contract price adjustment will be limited to liability and/or automobile insurance. The follow conditions must be met for the OHA to consider a price adjustment:

- 1. The Contractor provides adequate documentation of price increase, such as an insurance policy statement;
- 2. The increase will not exceed five percent (5%) from the original price for each budget line item; and
- 3. The request for increase must be reasonable and there must be a sufficient amount of funds available to support the increase.

III. Contract Monitoring and Remedies

A. Monitoring

- 1. The satisfactory provision of goods and services will be monitored by the OHA's Contract Administrator. Performance will be monitored on an ongoing basis by the OHA through desk monitoring, site inspection and/or other methods by the OHA's Contract Administrator and his/her designated representative(s).
- 2. Should the Successful Offeror fail to comply with the requirements of the Contract, the OHA may request a written corrective action plan, a timeline for implementation, and the responsible parties. The OHA will monitor the Successful Offeror for implementation of the corrective action plan. The OHA reserves the right to request regular or additional report(s) on progress towards compliance with the Contract and the corrective action plan.
- 3. Should the Successful Offeror continue to fail to comply with the requirements of the Contract, the OHA reserves the right to engage the services of another to perform the services to remedy the defect or failure and to deduct such costs from monies due to the Successful Offeror or to directly assess the Successful Offeror.
- 4. In the event the Successful Offeror fails, refuses, or neglects to perform the services in accordance with the requirements of this RFP and the Contract, the OHA reserves the right to purchase in the open market, corresponding services, and to deduct this cost from the monies due or that may thereafter become due to the Successful Offeror. If monies due to the Successful Offeror is insufficient for this purpose, the Successful Offeror shall pay the difference upon demand by the OHA. The OHA may also utilize all other remedies provided under the Contract and/or as permitted by law.

5. In the event the Successful Offeror is not performing the required services as contracted, the OHA reserves the right to extend the Contract for intervals of less than twelve (12) months. During this time, the OHA will monitor the Successful Offeror's performance and/or improvement and the implementation of its corrective action plan to determine whether the OHA will continue to contract with the Successful Offeror.

B. Damages

The Successful Offeror will repair all damages caused by the Successful Offeror's equipment or employees to existing utilities and structures, such as water lines, electric conduits, sewer lines, and buildings. If such repairs are not completed within a reasonable time, the OHA reserves the right to purchase services for the necessary repairs from the open market and to deduct all repair costs from monies due or may thereafter become due to the Successful Offeror. In the event monies due to the Successful Offeror is insufficient for this purpose, the Successful Offeror will pay the difference upon demand by the OHA.

C. Termination

The OHA reserves the right to terminate the Contract without penalty for cause or convenience as provided in the General Conditions. See Attachment 11 – General Conditions.

IV. SCOPE OF WORK

All services and to whom services are to be provided will be in accordance with this RFP, including any attachments and addenda. The Successful Offeror's services shall include, but may not be limited to consulting, training, mentoring, and monitoring as follows:

A. Scope of Work

1. Project Management Process

- a. The Successful Offeror shall provide guidance and consultation for the OHA, and shall assist the OHA in the development of a project management process to be used organization wide and shall include, but may not be limited to an implementation plan and a monitoring or evaluation plan.
- b. The Successful Offeror shall incorporate into the plans, a standard project management methodology, which shall be based on the Project Management Institute's Project Management Body of Knowledge.¹

24

¹ Note: Approximately 80% of OHA's staff have been trained on a project management methodology described as the 'waterfall' method; and the OHA would prefer the plan, documentation, training, etc. be aligned to this methodology.

- c. Consultant: The Successful Offeror shall work with the OHA to develop and implement a Project Management process at the OHA.
- d. Standard Operating Procedure: The Successful Offeror shall draft project management operating procedures consistent with the OHA adopted project management methodology.
- e. Mentor: The Successful Offeror shall guide the OHA in the implementation and integration of a Project Management process at the OHA shall include but may not be limited to all steps from the planning through execution and evaluation.
- f. Monitor: The Successful Offeror shall provide 'interim-monitoring' to track the success of the implementation of the Project Management process at the OHA, until the time the OHA can take over monitoring. Permanent monitoring will be handled in-house by the OHA.
- g. Deliverables: Project Management Function
 - i. Project Management Implementation Plan;
 - ii. Completion of Project Management Implementation Plan activities;
 - iii. Project Management Standard Operating Procedure;
 - iv. Monitoring Mechanism;
 - v. Implementation of Monitoring Mechanism;
 - vi. Evaluation Plan; and
 - vii. Evaluation Report.

2. Portfolio Management Process

- a. The Successful Offeror shall provide guidance and consultation for the OHA and shall assist the OHA in the development of a Portfolio Management process, and shall include but may not be limited to an implementation plan and a monitoring or evaluation plan. Note: Portfolio Management is needed at the Division level and the organization or "systems" level.
- b. The Successful Offeror shall incorporate into the plans, a standard portfolio management methodology, which shall be based on the Project Management Institute's Project Management Body of Knowledge.
- c. Consultant: The Successful Offeror shall work with the OHA to develop and implement a portfolio management process for managers and directors.
- d. Standard Operating Procedure: The Successful Offeror shall draft project management operating procedures consistent with the OHA adopted project management methodology.

- e. Mentor: The Successful Offeror shall guide the OHA in the implementation and integration of a Portfolio Management process at the OHA to include all steps from the planning through execution and evaluation.
- f. Deliverables: Portfolio Management Process, Division and Organization level
 - i. Portfolio Management Implementation Plan;
 - ii. Completion of the Portfolio Management Implementation Plan activities;
 - iii. Portfolio Management Standard Operating Procedure;
 - iv. Monitoring Mechanism;
 - v. Implementation of the Monitoring Mechanism;
 - vi. Evaluation Plan; and
 - vii. Evaluation Report.

3. Training and Coaching

- a. Trainer: The Successful Offeror shall provide the basic/introductory Project Management training for approximately 25 Full-Time Employees (hereinafter "FTE")] in two (2) to three (3) sessions.
- b. Trainer/Coach: The Successful Offeror shall provide advanced Project Management training for up to 12 FTEs in two (2) to three (3) sessions, and coaching for them to provide advanced Project Management training to other employees.
- c. Trainer/Coach: The Successful Offeror shall provide portfolio management training and coaching for Program Managers and Division Directors, and their support staff (approximately 50 FTE) in four (4) or five (5) sessions.

d. Deliverables

- i. Completion of basic/introductory Project Management training session(s);
- ii. Completion of Advanced Project Management training and coaching session(s); and
- iii. Completion of Portfolio Management training and coaching session(s).

4. Bi-Weekly Status Reports

The Successful Offeror shall provide the OHA with bi-weekly status reports of the progress of all activities and related deliverables as a basis for billings and payment.

A. Qualifications & Requirements

1. Specific Qualifications and Requirements

- a. The Successful Offeror and/or its personnel providing the services described in this RFP shall hold a Project Management certification from a professional Project Management association.
- b. The Successful Offeror shall develop recommendations for the implementation of the Project Management process at the OHA on all levels of the agency.
- c. The Successful Offeror shall propose an action plan to include a training schedule and timeline for achieving short, medium and long-term goals for the OHA to integrate and implement a Project Management process.
- d. The Successful Offeror shall provide a list of tools, materials, and resources to be used during the training, coaching, consulting, and mentoring process.

2. Administrative Requirements

- a. The Successful Offeror shall designate a contact person who will be responsible for project oversight and ensure Contract performance. The contact person shall respond to the OHA's inquiries, complaints/problems within one (1) working day.
- b. The OHA's Contract Administrator may send a monitoring report to the Successful Offeror's contact person. The monitoring report will document any discrepancies or Contract violation(s) for correction within the designated time period provided.
- c. The Successful Offeror will ensure adequate and appropriate representation at regular meetings with the OHA and/or the OHA Board of Trustees. At this time, OHA anticipates monthly meetings with the Successful Offeror's contact person who will be responsible for oversight of Contract performance. Additional meetings may be required by the OHA.

B. Personnel

- 1. All personnel will be considered employees or agents of the Successful Offeror.
- 2. The Successful Offeror will ensure that all personnel meet the minimum qualifications, including State licensing laws and experience requirements. The current wage rates and position class specification for personnel are available at the following addresses:

https://dhrd.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/Compensation-Plan-October-2018.pdf

https://dhrd.hawaii.gov/state-employees/classification-and-compensation/

- 3. All staff training such as training required to ensure that the minimum services are provided in compliance with State/Federal laws, rules, and regulations, will be the responsibility of the Successful Offeror.
- 4. The Successful Offeror will be solely responsible for the behavior and conduct of its employees or agents while on the OHA property. Supervision will be the responsibility of the Successful Offeror.
- 5. The Successful Offeror will ensure the confidentiality of all information, documents, or materials viewed or discussed. The Successful Offeror's personnel will not disclose confidential information to the general public without the expressed written consent of the OHA by either policy, rules or letter. The Successful Offeror's personnel shall complete and sign an OHA non-disclosure agreement prior to execution of the Contract.
- 6. During the performance of this Contract, the Successful Offeror agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment. The Successful Offeror will take affirmative action to ensure equal treatment of its employees. Such actions will include, without limitation, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Successful Offeror will insert provisions similar to the foregoing in all subcontracts.
- 7. The Successful Offeror agrees to remove any of its employees from services to the OHA upon written request by the OHA's Contract Administrator. At the request of the OHA, the Successful Offeror will remove forthwith and will not employ in any portion of the work, any person who, in the opinion of the OHA, does not perform his/her duties and responsibilities in a proper and skillful manner, is intoxicated, disorderly, abusive, or unable to demonstrate tact and diplomacy in dealing with the public.

D. Reporting Requirements

The Successful Offeror will be responsible for the timely submission of reports as requested by the OHA, including without limitation, the following:

1. Bi-weekly status reports of the progress of all activities and related deliverables as a basis for billings and payment;

- 2. Reports shall include the OHA's performance evaluation during monitoring and coaching activities; and
- 3. Special requests in response to inquiries from the OHA Board of Trustees, and/or other government agencies.

E. Payment

- 1. The OHA will have thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of invoice and satisfactory delivery of goods or performance of the services to make payment. For this reason, the OHA will reject any proposal submitted with a condition requiring payment within a shorter period.
- 2. The OHA will pay the Successful Offeror based on completion of the deliverables.
- 3. The Success Offeror will submit invoices based on completed deliverables.
- 4. The Successful Offeror will clearly indicate any adjustment made to the billing statement for work not performed.
- 5. All invoices will reference the Contract number assigned to the Contract. Payment will be made upon certification by the OHA's Contract Administrator that the Successful Offeror has satisfactorily provided the goods and services specified in the Contract.
- 6. The Successful Offeror will submit original invoices for services performed to:

Financial Services Office of Hawaiian Affairs 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817

- 7. Upon receipt of the invoice, the OHA will date stamp the invoice, and use this receipt date to calculate the 30-day payment period. For the purposes herein, the Successful Offeror's invoice date will not be considered.
- 8. For final payment, the Successful Offeror must submit a valid original tax clearance certificate entitled "Certification of Compliance for Final Payment". See Attachment 13 SPO-Form 22. The Successful Offeror is required to submit a tax clearance certificate for final payment on the Contract. A valid Hawai'i Compliance Express Certificate of Vendor Compliance in lieu of the tax clearance is acceptable.

(END OF SECTION)

Section 3 – Proposal Format and Instructions

I. General Instructions for Completing Forms

When an interested offeror submits a proposal, it will be considered a complete plan for accomplishing the tasks identified in this RFP. The interested offeror's proposal must demonstrate an understanding of and the ability to meet and perform all contractual requirements listed in this RFP.

The submission of a proposal will constitute the Offeror's indisputable representation of compliance with every requirement of the RFP and that the RFP documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey a reasonable understanding of all terms and conditions of performance of the work to the Offeror.

An interested offeror will submit one (1) original proposal, marked "ORIGINAL", four (4) copies of the original marked "COPY", and one (1) flash drive containing the submitted proposal in a portable document form ("PDF"). It is imperative that an Offeror submit only one (1) original with the required number of copies. The outer envelope or packaging of the proposals will be <u>sealed and clearly marked with the RFP number</u> and title, the Offeror's name, address, email address and telephone number.

Any and all corrections to a proposal will be initialed in ink by the person signing the proposal for the Offeror. Any illegible or otherwise unrecognizable corrections or initials may cause the rejection of the proposal.

Before submitting a proposal, each interested offeror must:

- 1. Thoroughly examine the solicitation documents. Solicitation documents include this RFP, any attachments, plans referred to therein, and any other relevant documentation.
- 2. Be familiar with Federal, State, and County laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may in any manner affect cost, progress, or performance of the work.

Proposals will be submitted to the OHA in the prescribed format outlined in this RFP. A written response is required for each item unless indicated otherwise.

Interested offerors may include supplemental literatures, brochures or other information, which may demonstrate related experience in the proposal package. Supplemental literatures or other information may not exceed five (5) double-sided pages (8-1/2" x 11").

II. Proposal Forms

A. The proposal forms will be completed and submitted to the OHA by the required due

- date and time and in the form prescribed by the OHA. Electronic mail and facsimile transmissions will not be accepted.
- B. Interested offerors will submit their proposals under the Offeror's exact legal name that is registered with the State of Hawai'i Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs and will indicate that this is its exact legal name. Failure to do so may delay proper execution of the Contract.
- C. Interested offeror's authorized signature will be an original signature in ink. If the proposal is unsigned or the affixed signature is a facsimile or a photocopy, the proposal will be automatically rejected. If the proposal is not signed by an authorized signatory as shown on the corporate resolution, the proposal will be automatically rejected.
- D. A proposal security deposit is not required for this RFP.
- E. Proposal will be typed on plain, white, letter-size paper with one-inch margins on all sides in twelve (12) point font and printed on one (1) side only.
- F. Proposals will be submitted on white 8 ½" x 11" paper and will be bound by a spiral binding. Do not submit proposals in a three (3)-ring binder. Submission of a proposal in this manner is disfavored by the OHA.
- G. Tabbing of sections is required.
- H. Documents that require submission on 11" x 17" paper to be legible is allowable.
- I. The numerical outline for the application, the titles/subtitles, and the Offeror name and RFP identification information on the top right hand corner of each page should be included.
- J. Consecutive page numbering of the proposal application should begin with page one (1) and end with the last numbered page of the complete proposal.
- K. Other supporting documents may be submitted in an Appendix, including visual aids, to further explain specific points in the proposal; if used, they should be referenced.

e. Proposal Application

A. Cover Letter

A Cover Letter will be included in the proposal. <u>See</u> Attachment 5. The Cover Letter shall include the following requirements:

1. Be printed on official business letterhead;

2. Original signature by an authorized signatory;

3. The following statement:

"The undersigned has carefully read and understands the terms and conditions specified in the RFP COO 2019-21, and in the General Conditions, and hereby submits the following Proposal to perform the work specified herein, all in accordance with the true intent and meaning thereof.

The undersigned further understands and agrees that by submitting this competitive sealed Proposal, 1) he/she is declaring his/her Proposal is not in violation of Chapter 84, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, concerning prohibited State Contracts, 2) he/she is certifying that the price(s) submitted was (were) independently arrived at without collusion, and 3) he/she hereby authorizes the Office of Hawaiian Affairs to verify information provided in this Proposal";

- 4. The exact legal name and address of the Offeror;
- 5. Contact person's name, telephone number and e-mail address;
- 6. A statement indicating that the interested offeror is a corporation or other legal entity and the taxpayer identification number of the legal entity; and
- 7. A statement that the interested offeror is or will be registered to do business in Hawai'i and has or will obtain a State General Excise Tax license before the start of the work.

B. Acknowledgement of Addendum

By completing the Acknowledgement of Addenda form, the interested offeror will acknowledge and identify that all addenda to this RFP issued by the OHA have been received by the interested offeror. <u>See</u> Attachment 2. If no addendum has been received, the interested offeror will check the appropriate box on the form.

C. Experience and Capability

The OHA is requiring that the Successful Offeror have a minimum of seven (7) years of experience providing Project Management training, coaching, consulting, mentoring and monitoring on projects of similar size and nature.

1. Overall Necessary Skills and Experience

The interested Offeror will demonstrate that it has the necessary skills, abilities, knowledge, and experience relating to the delivery of the services described in this RFP.

The interested offeror will describe the background, mission, and services of its organization. Include number of years in business, specific references to organization history and experience that relate to the Scope of Work described in this RFP, and demonstrate capacity for delivering organizational development consultancy.

Provide a brief description of the overall approach to training, coaching, consulting and mentoring Project Management and a summary of its experience in designing and implementing consultation and mentoring programs relating to Project Management.

The interested offeror will also detail its experience, relating to the Scope of Work in this RFP, with any Native Hawaiian organizations or communities.

2. Implementation, Consultation and Mentoring Skills and Experience

The interested offeror will clearly and concisely summarize and highlight its program experience and capability to perform the Scope of Work as it relates to implementation, consultation, and mentoring.

Describe the organization's experience working with clients that have sought similar implementation, consulting, and mentoring services for Project Management curricula.

3. Project/Program/Portfolio Management Training & Coaching Skills and Experience

The interested offeror will clearly and concisely summarize and highlight its program experience and capability to perform the Scope of Work as it relates to training and coaching.

Describe the organization's experience working with clients that have sought similar trainings and coaching for Project Management curricula.

4. Professional References

The interested offeror will provide a list of professional references for the last five (5) years, including contact (e.g., e-mail, phone contact, mailing address) information for similar type work (e.g., strategic planning, facilitation, working with and in island communities), description of the engagement and major deliverables, role of the contractor and number of hours of engagement.

5. Quality Assurance, Evaluation and Resolution

The interested offeror will describe its quality assurance and evaluation plans for the proposed services, including methodology for evaluating successful Project Management implementation. Evaluation plans must include client surveys as appropriate. The interested offeror will also describe its resolution process as it relates to the completion of the scope of work and/or if there are disagreements between OHA and the contractor.

6. Coordination of Services

The interested offeror will demonstrate the capability to coordinate services with other agencies and resources in the community.

7. Past Performance

The interested offeror will also provide a listing of verifiable experiences with projects or contracts related to the services that were provided to a government agency or private entity within the last five (5) years. Identify the name of the client, the nature and duration of the engagement, primary accomplishments, and any experience with Native Hawaiian organizations and/or communities.

Provide a list of companies or governmental organizations to which your proposed team is/are currently providing services. If this does not include at least five (5) entities, then provide the names of the entities for which similar services have been provided. For each entity include:

- a. Term of your contract (beginning and ending dates);
- b. Brief description of the scope of work; and
- c. Name, address, and telephone number of the individual that administered your contract(s).

The OHA reserves the right to verify the documented experience directly with the owner/contact person as submitted in the proposal. Only information that is submitted directly to the OHA in the proposal package will be considered unless the OHA seeks additional information during the evaluation process. The OHA reserves the right to review and consider past performance the Successful Offeror may have had with the OHA.

D. Personnel – Project Organization and Staffing

1. Proposed Staffing

This section will describe the staff necessary and specific time available to ensure the performance of work in an accurate and timely manner. Staff titles, qualifications and expected responsibilities are to be included in the response. Detail the proposed team's capacity to successfully plan, implement and develop the proposed work.

2. Staff Qualifications

This section will provide the minimum qualifications including experience of staff assigned to the program. Describe the knowledge and experience of your proposed project director and/or staff including the day-to-day management. Attach resumes and relevant professional background/experience of each key staff position.

3. Supervision and Training

The interested offeror will describe its ability to supervise, train and provide administrative direction relative to the delivery of the proposed services.

4. Organization Chart

If applicable, this section will reflect the position of each staff and line of responsibility/supervision. Please include position title, name and full or part-time status. If applicable, a project organization chart must be included with the proposal.

E. Service Delivery

This section will include a detailed discussion of the following:

- 1. The interested offeror's approach to applicable services, activities and management requirements from Section 2, Item IV. Scope of Work including, but may not be limited to phases, work plans of all service activities and tasks to be completed, and related work assignments/responsibilities.
- 2. Provide a recommended implementation timeline from design through final evaluation to meet the needs identified in the Scope of Work of this RFP; include key milestones, deliverables and service activities and tasks.

Detail a tentative training schedule and overall program outcomes for the:

Consultation and mentoring of the development and implementation of the Project Management process for the OHA;
Basic/introductory Project Management training;
Advanced Project Management training; and
Program and Portfolio Management training.

3. Describe how the interested offeror's approach is the most advantageous in terms of meeting the scope of work, cost effectiveness, and reliability.

F. Financial Capacity

This section will state the interested offeror's status of current projects and the financial capacity. Given the state of the interested offeror's current workload and work in progress, provide information as to the financial capacity to complete the project in a timely and orderly manner.

G. Price Proposal

This section will include the activities and proposed hours and cost for the Contract period. Include a description of the basis for the cost of performing the requested services, including professional fees by labor category, other direct costs chargeable to the contract and general administration, overhead/profit and reimbursable expenses.

The price proposal section will also include the details below.

Activity/Deliverable	Number of Hours	Price Proposed
Project Management Process: Consultation		
Deliverables: Implementation Plan, Monitoring		
Mechanism, Evaluation Plan		
Draft Standard Operating Procedures		
Deliverable: Project Management Standard Operating		
Procedures		
Project Management Process: Mentoring		
Project Management Process: Monitoring		
Deliverable: Project Management Evaluation Report		
Project Management Basic Training (up to 3 sessions		
with approximately 25 FTE)		
Project Management Advanced Training (up to 3		
sessions with approximately twelve (12) FTE)		
Project Management Advanced Training/Coaching		
(up to 2 sessions with approximately twelve (12) FTE)		
Portfolio Management Process: Consultation		
Deliverables: Implementation Plan, Monitoring		
Mechanism, Evaluation Plan		
Draft Standard Operating Procedures		
Deliverable: Portfolio Management Standard		
Operating Procedures		
Portfolio Management Process: Mentoring		
Portfolio Management Process: Monitoring		
Deliverable: Portfolio Management Evaluation Report		
Portfolio Management Training (up to 5 sessions with		
approximately 50 FTE)		

H. Cost Reimbursement for All Costs Related to Personnel

The cost reimbursement pricing structure reflects a "not to exceed purchase arrangement" in which the OHA pays the Successful Offeror for budgeted costs that are actually incurred in delivering the services specified in the Contract, up to a state maximum obligation. Cost reimbursement will include, without limitation, personnel salaries, wages medical benefits, payroll taxes and other expenses such as liability insurance, airfare, lodging, and transportation. The Successful Offeror will be required to submit invoices detailing the amount(s) to be reimbursed.

I. Commitment to Section 2 Requirement

This section will describe the interested offeror's approach to furthering the OHA's commitment to the Section 2. Item II.A.10. requirement, Using Best Effort to Fulfill Minority/Women Business Participation.

(END OF SECTION)

Section 4 – Proposal Evaluation & Award

I. Proposal Evaluation

An evaluation committee approved by the OHA's CEO or designee will evaluate all responsive and responsible proposals. The evaluation of such proposals will be based solely on the evaluation criteria set out in this RFP. The evaluation committee's primary responsibility will be to review the technical aspects of the proposal submitted. The price proposal review will be conducted by the evaluation committee chairperson. The review criteria will be as follows:

Evaluation Categories	Possible Points
1. Experience and Capability Up to [20] points will be awarded based on the degree to which the interested offeror clearly and concisely demonstrates that it has the experience, necessary skills, abilities, knowledge of, and participated and successfully completed similar projects anywhere within the United States.	[20] points
2. Personnel: Project Organization and Staffing Up to [15] points will be awarded based on the degree to which the interested offeror clearly and concisely demonstrates that it has the qualified personnel, expertise, capacity and time to perform the requested services.	[15] points
3. Service Delivery a. Up to [20] points will be awarded based on the degree to which the interested offeror clearly and concisely demonstrates its approach to the scope of work, cost effectiveness, and reliability.	[20] points
b. Up to [20] points will be awarded based on the degree to which the interested offeror clearly and concisely demonstrates its approach to developing and implementing an effective Project Management process.	[20] points
4. Financial Capacity Up to [10] points will be awarded based on the degree to which the interested offeror clearly and concisely demonstrates that it has the financial capacity to complete the project in a timely and orderly manner.	[10] points

Evaluation Categories	Possible Points
5. Price Proposal The interested offeror proposing the lowest price will be assigned the maximum points. Each proposal that has a higher cost factor than the lowest will be assigned a lower rating.	[10] points
6. Commitment to Section 2 Up to [5] points will be awarded based on the degree to which the interested offeror clearly and concisely demonstrates their approach to furthering the OHA's commitment to the Section 2. Item II.A.10. requirement, Using Best Effort to Fulfill Minority/Women Business Participation.	[5] points
TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS	100 Points

Each proposal will be classified initially as acceptable, potentially acceptable, or unacceptable. If numerous acceptable and potentially acceptable proposals are submitted, the evaluation committee may rank the proposals and limit the priority list to three (3) responsive and responsible offerors who submitted the highest-ranked proposals. If there are less than three (3) acceptable or potentially acceptable proposals, the OHA will not be required to hold discussion with these offerors who submitted unacceptable proposals.

II. Mandatory Requirements

The OHA will conduct an initial review to ensure that all proposals meet the minimum threshold requirements. Each proposal will be reviewed to ensure submittal of all required attachments, certifications, forms, and narrative sections.

Statements which indicate that mandatory certification will be submitted upon Contract award will be unacceptable.

III. Financial/Price Proposal Review

The financial/price proposal review will be evaluated for financial and contractual acceptability and reasonableness of the price proposal. The proposal with the lowest cost factor will receive the highest available rating allocated to cost. Each proposal that has a higher cost factor than the lowest will be assigned a lower rating for cost.

The points allocated to higher priced proposals must be equal to the lowest proposal price multiplied by the maximum points available for price, divided by the higher proposal price as follows:

Price of the lowest price proposal x 10
Price of the proposal being rated

In determining whether a proposal is responsive, the OHA will evaluate the costs and supporting documentation against realistic operational expenses.

The OHA will also review the most recent audited statements of the Successful Offeror.

IV. Technical Review

The Successful Offeror's proposal will be in the form prescribed by this solicitation and will contain a response to each of the areas identified that affects the evaluation factors for award.

- A. The technical proposal will be evaluated to determine if the Successful Offeror possesses the capability to successfully perform the requirements of the solicitation. The proposal criteria are shown below:
 - 1. Experience and Capability;
 - 2. Personnel and Staffing;
 - 3. Service Delivery;
 - 4. Financial Capacity; and
 - 5. Commitment to Section 2/Other Requirements
- B. Proposals will be evaluated for technical and contractual acceptability. Proposals will be prepared in accordance with the instructions given in the RFP and will meet all requirements set forth in this RFP.
- C. All proposals will be reviewed for reasonableness. All interested offerors whose offer are not within the competitive range will be notified that their proposals are unacceptable, negotiations/discussions with them are not contemplated, and any revisions of their proposals will not be considered.
- D. Award will be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal conforms to the solicitation and will be most advantageous to the OHA considering price and other factors as indicated below.
 - Pursuant to section 3-122-59, HAR, if for a given request for proposal there is only one (1) responsive and responsible offeror submitting an acceptable proposal, an award may be made to the single offeror, or rejected, if conditions in section 3-122-59(a)(1) are not met, and new requests for proposal may be solicited or the procurement may be cancelled.
- E. The OHA reserves the right to award a Contract on the basis of the initial offers received without discussion. Offers are solicited on an "all or none" basis.

Failure to submit offers for all items and quantities listed will be cause for rejection. Proposals should be submitted initially on the most favorable terms of a price and technical standpoint, which the Offeror can submit to the OHA.

All proposals submitted will be evaluated on the basis of the evaluation criteria listed herein. Proposals will conform to all terms and conditions contained in the Request for Proposals. Proposals which do not conform to all requirements expressed in this solicitation may be rejected without further evaluation, deliberation or discussion.

F. Past Performance. The OHA may evaluate the quality of each Offeror's past performance. The assessment of an Offeror's past performance will be used as one means of evaluating the credibility of the Offeror's approach to work accomplishment. A record of marginal or unacceptable past performance may be an indication that the promises made by the Offeror are less than reliable. Such an indication will be reflected in the OHA's overall assessment of the Offeror's proposal. However, a record of acceptable or even excellent past performance will not result in a favorable assessment of an otherwise unacceptable technical proposal.

In investigating an Offeror's past performance, the OHA may consider information in the Offeror's proposal and information obtained from other sources, including past and present customers and their employees; other government agencies, including state and local agencies, consumer protection organizations and better business bureaus; former subcontractors; and others. Evaluation of past performance is a subjective assessment based on a consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances. The OHA may seek to determine whether the Offeror has consistently demonstrated a commitment to customer satisfaction and timely delivery of quality goods and services at fair and reasonable prices.

The OHA's conclusions about the overall quality of the Offeror's past performance may be influential in determining the relative merits of the Offeror's proposal and in selecting the Successful Offeror whose proposal is considered most advantageous to the OHA.

Past performance includes the Offeror's record of conforming to specifications and to standards of good workmanship; the Offeror's adherence to Contract schedules, including the administrative aspects of performance, the Offeror's control of costs, including costs incurred for changes in the scope of services; the Offeror's reputation for reasonable and cooperative behavior and commitment to customer satisfaction; and, generally, the Offeror's business-like concern for the interests of the client.

V. Discussions - Kūkākūkā

Discussions may be conducted with priority listed offerors who submit proposals determined to be acceptable or potentially acceptable of being selected for award, but proposals may be accepted without discussions. The objective of these discussions is to:

- 1. Promote understanding of the requirements set forth in the RFP and the interested offeror's proposal; and
- 2. Facilitate arriving at a contract that will provide the best value to the OHA, taking into consideration the evaluation factors set forth in this RFP.

Any discussion is not intended to require an award of contract by the OHA.

(END OF SECTION)

Section 5 – Attachments

- Attachment 1 Proposal Submittal Checklist
- Attachment 2 Acknowledgement of Addenda
- Attachment 3 Wage Certificate Form for Service Contract
- Attachment 4 RFP Registration Form
- Attachment 5 Sample Cover Letter
- Attachment 6 Sample Contract for Goods and Services Based Upon Competitive Sealed Proposals
- Attachment 7 Sample of Contract Attachment S1, Scope of Services
- Attachment 8 Sample of Contract Attachment S2, Compensation
- Attachment 9 Sample of Contract Attachment S3, Time of Performance
- Attachment 10 Sample of Contract Attachment S4, Special Conditions
- Attachment 11 General Conditions, OHA-2018 103D General Conditions
- Attachment 12 Holiday Schedule
- Attachment 13 SPO-Form 22

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST

RFP COO 2019-21 Project Management Services

The following checklist is provided as a reference for proposal submittal. The offeror shall be responsible for complying with all aspects of proposal submission requirements. See the RFP for more information regarding each item. The OHA shall not be responsible for other pertinent RFP information not listed below:

□ 1.	Cover Letter (original signature required). <u>See</u> Attachment 5 – Sample Cover Letter
□ 2.	Proposal
□ 3.	Finance Related Requirements
□ 4.	Qualifications and Requirements pertaining to the Scope of Services, if any
□ 5.	Attachment 2 – Acknowledgement of Addendum
□ 6.	Attachment 3 – Wage Certificate
□ 7.	Hawaii Compliance Express Certificate of Vendor Compliance <u>OR</u>
	□ a. Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, Certificate of Compliance with section 3-122-112, HAR, Form LIR #27; <u>AND</u>
	\square b. Department of Consumer and Commerce Affairs Certificate of Good Standing; \underline{AND}
	☐ c. State and Federal Tax Clearance Certificates.
□ 8.	Corporate Resolution indicating authorized signer for proposal and contractual documents
□ 9.	Submit proposal in a <u>sealed envelope or box identified with RFP COO 2019-21</u> , Project Management Services, offeror's legal name, business address, phone number, fax number, and address it to the attention of the RFP Coordinator.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA

RFP COO 2019-21 Project Management Services

The offeror has received the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged:

		Check box if Addendum not received
Addendum Number:	Date Received:	
Addendum Number:	Date Received:	
Addendum Number:	Date Received:	_
Addendum Number:	Date Received:	
Addendum Number:	Date Received:	
Offeror's Name		
Authorized Signature (Original)		
Print Authorized Signature Name		

WAGE CERTIFICATE

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

Project Management services, including training, coaching, consulting, and mentoring for the OHA.

Pursuant to Section 103-55, Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS), I hereby certify that if awarded the contract and it is in excess of \$25,000.00 the services will be performed under the following conditions:

- 1. The services shall be performed by employees at wages or salaries not less than wages or salaries paid to public officers and employees doing similar work; and
- 2. All applicable laws of the Federal and State governments relating to worker's compensation, unemployment compensation, payment of wages, and safety will be fully complied with.

I understand that all payments required by Federal and State laws to be made by employers for the benefit of their employees are to be paid in addition to the base wages required by Section 103-55, HRS.

BY:	
	Signature of Person Authorized to Signer
Please Prin	<u>t</u>
NAME: _	
TITLE: _	
VENDOR:	
DATE:	

RFP REGISTRATION FORM

RFP COO 2019-21	PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

<u>INSTRUCTIONS:</u> If picking up your RFP packet from the OHA office, please complete this Registration Form and leave the original with the OHA's Procurement Unit. <u>A copy will be made for you.</u> The copy contains important dates, times, and information. If this form was downloaded online with the RFP packet, please complete and e-mail or mail this form to the RFP Coordinator: Miki Cachola Lene, <u>mikic@oha.org</u>, 560 N. Nimitz Highway, Suite 200, Honolulu, Hawai'i, 96817.

Read this packet carefully. If you have any questions, please call Miki Cachola Lene at (808) 594-1993.

Registration Forms Due	Due by Wednesday, April 17, 2019, 11:00 a.m. HST	
	Scheduled for Friday, April 17, 2019, 10:00 – 11:00 a.m. HST At the OHA, 560 N. Nimitz Hwy, Ste. 200, Honolulu, HI 96817	
Pre-Proposal Conference	Teleconference may be available during the Pre-Proposal Conference session upon request. Please contact the RFP Coordinator to request for arrangements by: Monday, April 15, 2019, 2:00 p.m. HST	
	Due by Friday, May 10, 2019, 2:00 p.m. HST	
Proposal Submittals Due	Submit to: OHA, 560 N. Nimitz Hwy, Ste. 200, Honolulu, HI 96817	
	E-mail and facsimile transmissions shall not be accepted.	
Notice of Award	May 2019	
Contract Start Date	July 1, 2019	
	Date:	
Company:		
Address:		
Phone: E-mail:		
Contact Person:		
Name of Person picking up	packet:	
Signature of Person picking	up packet:	

YOUR BUSINESS LETTERHEAD Aloha Company • 123 Aloha 'Oe Drive • Honolulu, HI 96819

TO: Head of Purchasing Agency
Kamana'opono Crabbe, Ph.D.
Ka Pouhana, CEO, HOPA
Office of Hawaiian Affairs
560 North Nimitz Highway Suite 200
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817

Dear Dr. Crabbe:

The undersigned has carefully read and understands the terms and conditions specified in the RFP COO 2019-21 and in the General Conditions, and hereby submits the following Proposal to perform the work specified herein, all in accordance with the true intent and meaning thereof.

The undersigned further understands and agrees that by submitting this competitive sealed Proposal, 1) he/she is declaring that his/her Proposal is not in violation of Chapter 84, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended, concerning prohibited State Contracts, 2) he/she is certifying that the price(s) submitted was (were) independently arrived at without collusion, and 3) he/she hereby authorizes the Office of Hawaiian Affairs to verify information provided in this Proposal.

Furthermore, Aloha Company is a Domestic Profit Corporation registered to do business in the State of Hawai'i. Please see the Federal taxpayer identification number and State General Excise Tax License Identification number indicated below.

Date:	Respectfully submitted,
Phone:	Exact Legal Name of Company (Offeror)
Remittance Address, if different from	Zhaot Zegar Name of Company (Official)
Business Address	
	Authorized Signature (Original)
	Print Name:
	Title:
Hawai'i General Excise Tax License	
I.D. No:	Business Address:
Federal Tax I.D./Social Security No:	
	E-mail:



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS

CONTRACT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES BASED UPON COMPETITIVE SEALED PROPOSALS

	ted on the respective dates indicated below, is effective as of a the Office of Hawaiian Affairs ("OHA"), a body corporate
under the Constitution of the Stat ("CEO") and Head of Purchasing Highway, Suite 200, Honolulu, Hav ("CONTRACTOR"), a	e of Hawai'i, by its Ka Pouhana, Chief Executive Officer g Agency ("HOPA"), whose address is 560 North Nimitz vai'i 96817, and
	RECITALS sires to retain and engage the CONTRACTOR to provide the lin this Contract and its attachments, and the CONTRACTOR or services or both.
B. The OHA hareceived and reviewed proposals sul	s issued a request for competitive sealed proposals and has bmitted in response to the request.
made in accordance with section Administrative Rules, Title 3, De	on for proposals and the selection of the CONTRACTOR were a 103D-303, Hawai'i Revised Statutes ("HRS"), Hawai'i partment of Accounting and General Services, Subtitle 11 to 6, and applicable procedures established by the appropriate by
	ACTOR has been identified as the responsible and responsive advantageous for the OHA, taking into consideration price and e request.
E. Pursuant to _ the OHA is authorized to enter into	(Legal authority to enter into this Contract) this Contract.
(1) F. Money is ava	ilable to fund this Contract pursuant to:
(2)	(Identify OHA source)
or (3)	(Identify state source)
or all, in the following amounts:	OHA \$
	Federal \$

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained in this Contract,

the OHA and the CONTRACTOR agree as follows: Scope of Services. The CONTRACTOR shall, in a proper and satisfactory manner as determined by the OHA, provide all the goods or services, or both, set forth in the request for competitive sealed proposals number _____ ("RFP") and the CONTRACTOR's accepted proposal ("Proposal"), both of which, even if not physically attached to this Contract, are made a part of this Contract. See Attachment – S1, which is made a part of this Contract. Compensation. The CONTRACTOR shall be compensated for goods supplied or services performed, or both, under this Contract in a total amount not to exceed **DOLLARS**), including approved costs incurred and taxes, at the time and in the manner set forth in the RFP and CONTRACTOR's Proposal. See Attachment – S2, which is made part of this Contract. Time of Performance. The services or goods required of the 3. CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall be performed and completed in accordance with the Time of Performance set forth in Attachment – S3, which is made a part of this Contract. Bonds. The CONTRACTOR \square is required to provide or \square is not required to provide: \square a performance bond, \square a payment bond \square a performance and payment bond in the amount **DOLLARS** (\$ Standards of Conduct Declaration. The Standards of Conduct Declaration 5. of the CONTRACTOR is attached to and made part of this Contract. 6. Other Terms and Conditions. The General Conditions and any Special Conditions are attached to and made part of this Contract. In the event of a conflict between the General Conditions and the Special Conditions, the Special Conditions shall control. In the event of a conflict among the documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: (1) this Contract, including all attachments and addenda; (2) the RFP, including all attachments and addenda; and (3) the Proposal. Liquidated Damages. Liquidated damages shall be assessed in the amount of per day, in accordance with the terms of paragraph 9 of the General (\$ Conditions. Notices. Any written notice required to be given by any party to this Contract shall be (a) delivered personally, or (b) sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid. Notice to the OHA shall be sent to the HOPA's address indicated in the Contract. Notice to the CONTRACTOR shall be sent to the CONTRACTOR's address indicated in the Contract. A notice shall be deemed to have been received three (3) days after mailing or at the time of actual receipt, whichever is earlier. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for notifying the OHA in writing of any change of address.

IN VIEW OF THE ABOVE, the parties execute this Contract by their signatures, on the dates below, to be effective as of the date first above written.

	ОНА
	(Signature)
	(Print Name)
	(Print Title)
	(Date)
	CONTRACTOR
	(Name of Contractor)
	(Signature)
	(Print Name)
	(Print Title)
	(Date)
A DDD OVED A C TO CONTENT	(Date)
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:	(Date)
	(Date)
Signature)	(Date)
Signature) Print Name)	(Date)
Signature) Print Name)	(Date)
Signature) Print Name) Print Title)	(Date)
Signature) Print Name) Print Title) Date)	(Date)
Signature) Print Name) Print Title) Date)	(Date)
Print Name) Print Title) Date) APPROVED AS TO FORM:	(Date)
Signature) Print Name) Print Title) Date) APPROVED AS TO FORM: Signature)	(Date)
Signature) Print Name) Print Title) Date) APPROVED AS TO FORM: Signature)	(Date)
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: Signature) Print Title) Date) APPROVED AS TO FORM: Signature) Print Name) Print Title)	(Date)

 $[\]hbox{*Evidence of authority of the CONTRACTOR's representative to sign this Contract for the CONTRACTOR must be attached.}$



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS CONTRACTOR'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF)	
COUNTY OF)	
On this,	1
described in and, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he/she/they is/are	
the CONTRACTOR named in the foregoing instrument, and that he/she/they is/are authoriz	_,
sign said instrument on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, and acknowledges that he she/they executed said instrument as the free act and deed of the CONTRACTOR.	ed to
(Notary Stamp or Seal)	
(Print Name) Notary Public, State of	
My commission expires:	
Document Date: # of Pages:	
Notary Name: Circuit	
Document Description:	
(Notary Stamp or	Seal)
Notary Signature Date	

NOTARY CERTIFICATION



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS

CONTRACTOR'S STANDARDS OF CONDUCT DECLARATION

For the purposes of this declaration:

"Agency" means and includes the State, the legislature and its committees, all executive departments, boards, commissions, committees, bureaus, offices; and all independent commissions and other establishments of the state government but excluding the courts.

"Controlling interest" means an interest in a business or other undertaking which is sufficient in fact to control, whether the interest is greater or less than fifty per cent (50%).

"Employee" means any nominated, appointed, or elected officer or employee of the State, including members of boards, commissions, and committees, and employees under contract to the State or of the constitutional convention, but excluding legislators, delegates to the constitutional convention, justices, and judges. (Section 84-3, HRS).

On behalf of	CONTRACTOR,	the undersigned does
declare as follows:		

- 1. CONTRACTOR \square is * \square is not a legislator or an employee or a business which a legislator or an employee has a controlling interest. (Section 84-15(a), HRS).
- 2. CONTRACTOR has not been represented or assisted personally in the matter by an individual who has been an employee of the agency awarding this Contract within the preceding two years and who participated while so employed in the matter with which the Contract is directly concerned. (Section 84-15(b), HRS).
- 3. CONTRACTOR has not been assisted or represented by a legislator or employee for a fee or other compensation to obtain this Contract and will not be assisted or represented by a legislator or employee for a fee or other compensation in the performance of this Contract, if the legislator or employee had been involved in the development or award of the Contract. (Section 84-14(d), HRS).
- 4. CONTRACTOR has not been represented on matters related to this Contract, for a fee or other consideration by an individual who, within the past twelve (12) months, has been an agency employee, or in the case of the Legislature, a legislator, and participated while an employee or legislator on matters related to this Contract. (Sections 84-18(b) and (c), HRS).

CONTRACTOR understands that the Contract to which this document is attached is voidable on behalf of the STATE if this Contract was entered into in violation of any provision of chapter 84, Hawaii Revised Statutes, commonly referred to as the Code of Ethics, including the provisions which are the source of the declarations above. Additionally, any fee, compensation, gift, or profit received by any person as a result of a violation of the Code of Ethics may be recovered by the STATE.

*Reminder to Agency.' If the "is" block is checked and if the Contract involves goods or services of a value in excess of \$10,000, the Contract must be awarded by competitive sealed bidding under section 103D-302, HRS, or a competitive sealed proposal under section 103D-303, HRS. Otherwise, the Agency may not award the Contract unless it posts a notice of its intent to award it and files a copy of the notice with the State Ethics Commission. (Section 84-15(a), HRS).

CONTRACTOR

Ву		
	(Signature)	
Print Name		
Print Title		
Name of Contractor _		
Date		



Project: Project Management Services

Description: Project Management training, coaching, consulting, and mentoring services for the

OHA

The CONTRACTOR shall provide and perform the services set forth below in a satisfactory and proper manner as determined by the OHA, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract. The services shall include, but may not be limited to, the following:

A. The following documents, and any amendments or addenda thereto, comprise the Contract between the parties and are fully a part of this Contract governing the work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR for the Project Management Services: (1) CONTRACTOR's accepted proposal dated [Date of Proposal Submitted]; (2) Request for Proposal No. COO 2019-21; and (3) OHA Non-Grant General Conditions; and (4) this Contract. These documents collectively comprise the "Contract"

B. Scope of Work

- 1. Project Management Process
 - a. The CONTRACTOR shall provide guidance and consultation for the OHA, and shall assist the OHA in the development of a Project Management process to be used organization wide and to include an implementation plan and a monitoring or evaluation plan.
 - b. The CONTRACTOR shall incorporate into the plans, a standard Project Management methodology, which may include but is not limited to traditional or "Waterfall" methods. ¹
 - e. Consultant: The CONTRACTOR shall work with the OHA to develop and implement a Project Management process at the OHA.
 - d. Mentor: The CONTRACTOR shall guide the OHA in the implementation and integration of a Project Management process at the OHA to include all steps from the planning through execution and evaluation.

¹ Note: Approximately 80% of OHA's staff have been trained on a project management methodology described as the 'waterfall' method; and the OHA would prefer the plan, documentation, training, etc. be aligned to this methodology.



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS SCOPE OF SERVICES

- e. Monitor: The CONTRACTOR shall provide 'interim-monitoring' to track the success of the implementation of the Project Management process at the OHA, until the time the OHA can take over monitoring. Permanent monitoring will be handled in-house by the OHA.
- f. Deliverables: Project Management Function
 - i. Project Management Implementation Plan;
 - ii. Completion of Project Management Implementation Plan activities;
 - iii. Monitoring Mechanism;
 - iv. Implementation of Monitoring Mechanism;
 - v. Evaluation Plan; and
 - vi. Evaluation Report.

2. Portfolio Management Process

- a. The CONTRACTOR shall provide guidance and consultation for the OHA and shall assist the OHA in the development of a Portfolio Management process, to include an implementation plan and a monitoring or evaluation plan. Note: Portfolio Management is needed at the Division level and the organization or "systems" level.
- b. Consultant: The CONTRACTOR shall work with the OHA to develop and implement a portfolio management process for managers and directors.
- c. Mentor: The CONTRACTOR shall guide the OHA in the implementation and integration of a Portfolio Management process at the OHA to include all steps from the planning through execution and evaluation.
- d. Deliverables: Portfolio Management Process, Division and Organization level
 - i. Portfolio Management Implementation Plan;
 - ii. Completion of the Portfolio Management Implementation Plan activities;
 - iii. Monitoring Mechanism;
 - iv. Implementation of the Monitoring Mechanism;
 - v. Evaluation Plan; and
 - vi. Evaluation Report.



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS SCOPE OF SERVICES

3. Standard Operating Procedures

a. The CONTRACTOR shall draft project management and portfolio management operating procedures consistent with the OHA adopted project management methodology.

b. Deliverables

- i. Project Management Standard Operating Procedures; and
- ii. Portfolio Management Operating Procedures.

4. Training and Coaching

- a. Trainer: The CONTRACTOR shall provide the basic/introductory Project Management training for approximately 25 Full-Time Employees (hereinafter "FTE")] in two or three sessions.
- b. Trainer/Coach: The CONTRACTOR shall provide advanced Project Management training for up to 12 FTEs in two or three sessions, and coaching for them to provide advanced Project Management training to other employees.
- c. Trainer/Coach: The CONTRACTOR shall provide portfolio management training and coaching? for Program Managers and Division Directors, and their support staff (approximately 50 FTE) in four or five sessions.

d. Deliverables

- i. Completion of basic/introductory Project Management training session(s);
- ii. Completion of Advanced Project Management training and coaching session(s); and
- iii. Completion of Portfolio Management training and coaching session(s).

5. Bi-Weekly Status Reports

The CONTRACTOR shall provide the OHA with bi-weekly status reports of the progress of all activities and related deliverables as a basis for billings and payment.

A. Qualifications & Requirements

1. Specific Qualifications and Requirements



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS SCOPE OF SERVICES

- a. The CONTRACTOR and/or its personnel providing the services described in this RFP shall hold a Project Management certification from a professional Project Management association.
- b. The CONTRACTOR shall develop recommendations for the implementation of the Project Management process at the OHA on all levels of the agency.
- c. The CONTRACTOR shall propose an action plan to include a training schedule and timeline for achieving short, medium and long-term goals for the OHA to integrate and implement a Project Management process.
- d. The CONTRACTOR, coaching, consulting, and mentoring process.

2. Administrative Requirements

- a. The CONTRACTOR shall designate a contact person who will be responsible for project oversight and ensure Contract performance. The contact person will be able to respond to the OHA's inquiries, complaints/problems within one (1) working day.
- b. The OHA's Contract Administrator may send a monitoring report to the CONTRACTOR's contact person. The monitoring report will document any discrepancies or Contract violation(s) for correction within the designated time period provided.
- c. The CONTRACTOR will ensure adequate and appropriate representation at regular meetings with the OHA and/or the OHA Board of Trustees. At this time, OHA anticipates monthly meetings with the CONTRACTOR's contact person who will be responsible for oversight of Contract performance. Additional meetings may be required by the OHA.

B. Personnel

- 1. All personnel will be considered employees or agents of the CONTRACTOR.
- 2. The CONTRACTOR will ensure that all personnel meet the minimum qualifications, including State licensing laws and experience requirements.
- 3. All staff training such as training required to ensure that the minimum services are provided in compliance with State/Federal laws, rules, and regulations, will be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS SCOPE OF SERVICES

- 4. The CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for the behavior and conduct of its employees or agents while on the OHA property. Supervision will be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.
- 5. The CONTRACTOR will ensure the confidentiality of all information, documents, or materials viewed or discussed. The CONTRACTOR's personnel will not disclose confidential information to the general public without the expressed written consent of the OHA by either policy, rules or letter. The CONTRACTOR's personnel shall complete and sign an OHA non-disclosure agreement prior to execution of the Contract.
- 6. During the performance of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure equal treatment of its employees. Such actions will include, without limitation, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR will insert provisions similar to the foregoing in all subcontracts.
- 7. The CONTRACTOR agrees to remove any of its employees from services to the OHA upon written request by the OHA's Contract Administrator. At the request of the OHA, the CONTRACTOR will remove forthwith and will not employ in any portion of the work, any person who, in the opinion of the OHA, does not perform his/her duties and responsibilities in a proper and skillful manner, is intoxicated, disorderly, abusive, or unable to demonstrate tact and diplomacy in dealing with the public.

B. Reporting Requirements

The CONTRACTOR will be responsible for the timely submission of reports as requested by the OHA, including without limitation, the following:

- 1. Bi-weekly status reports of the progress of all activities and related deliverables as a basis for billings and payment;
- 2. Reports to include the OHA's performance evaluation during monitoring and coaching activities; and
- 3. Special requests in response to inquiries from the OHA Board of Trustees, and/or other government agencies.



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS SCOPE OF SERVICES

C. The Administrator will act as the contract monitor and principal liaison between the CONTRACTOR and the OHA. The Administrator shall assist in resolving policy questions expediting decisions and the review of the work performed. See Attachment – S4 General Conditions.





Project: Project Management Services

Description: Project Management training, coaching, consulting, and mentoring services for the

OHA

A. The OHA agrees to pay the CONTRACTOR, subject to the availability of funds, a maximum amount not to exceed [DOLLAR AMOUNT WRITTEN OUT AND NO/100 DOLLARS] (\$[AMOUNT]) inclusive of all actual reasonable ordinary necessary costs and expenses, including general excise tax currently at the rate of [4.712% (for Oahu only) or 4.166% (for neighbor islands)], for services satisfactorily rendered under this Contract.

B. Compensation shall be paid pursuant to the schedule set forth below and upon presentment of invoice and satisfactory performance of the work described in ATTACHMENT – S1 SCOPE OF SERVICES and shall be approved by the OHA Administrator. The Administrator's written approval shall be required before incurring any exceptional cost and/or expenses. Compensation shall be paid in the following manner:

Payment Number	Period Due	Amount
1	[Date] to [Date]	\$[AMOUNT]
2	[Date] to [Date]	\$[AMOUNT]
3	[Date] to [Date]	\$[AMOUNT]
Total		\$[AMOUNT]

- 1. The OHA will pay the CONTRACTOR based on completion of the deliverables.
- 2. The CONTRACTOR will submit invoices based on completed deliverables.
- 3. The CONTRACTOR will clearly indicate any adjustment made to the billing statement for work not performed.
- C. The OHA shall retain TEN PERCENT (10%) equal to [DOLLAR AMOUNT WRITTEN OUT AND NO 100 DOLLARS] (\$[AMOUNT]), including general excise tax currently at the rate of [4.712% (for Oahu only) or 4.166% (for neighbor islands)], of the total Contract amount as the final payment under this Contract. Payment of the retained amount shall be made upon the completion and approval by the OHA of deliverables as stated in the payment.
- D. For final payment, the CONTRACTOR must submit a valid tax clearance certificate and a "Certification of Compliance for Final Payment" (Form SPO-22). An original tax clearance certificate not over two (2) months old with an original green certified copy



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS COMPENSATION

stamp or a valid HCE Certificate of Vendor Compliance, in lieu of the tax clearance certificate, is acceptable. A copy of Form SPO-22 is available at www.spo.hawaii.gov. Select "Forms for Vendors/Contractors from the chapter 103D, HRS, link.

E. The CONTRACTOR shall submit original invoices for services to:

Office of Hawaiian Affairs Attn: Financial Services 560 North Nimitz Highway, Suite 200 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96817

- F. All invoices shall reference the Contract number assigned to this Contract. Payment shall be made upon certification by the OHA Administrator that the CONTRACTOR has satisfactorily performed the services specified, payment will be made
- G. The OHA will have thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of invoice and satisfactory delivery of goods or performance of the services to make payment.
- H. Upon receipt of the invoice, the OHA will date stamp the invoice, and use this receipt date to calculate the 30-day payment period. For the purposes herein, the CONTRACTOR's invoice date will not be considered.
- I. Said withheld amount shall be subject to the CONTRACTOR's satisfactory reconciliation and submittal of all reports and tax clearances from the Director of Taxation and the Internal Revenue Service. Any debt owed to the State Department of Taxation shall be offset first. The CONTRACTOR shall still be required to submit copies of valid tax clearances to the OHA within THIRTY (30) days of the termination date of this Agreement. A Certificate of Vendor Compliance issued by the Hawai'i Compliance Express may be submitted in lieu of the tax clearance certificate.

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS TIME OF PERFORMANCE

Attachment – S3

Project: Project Management Services

Description: Project Management training, coaching, consulting, and mentoring services for the

OHA

- A. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the services required under this Contract from [Date] through and including [Date] unless this Contract is sooner terminated.
- B. The manner in which the services are to be performed and the specific hours to be worked by the CONTRACTOR shall be determined by the CONTRACTOR, limited, however, to the maximum amount payable as specified in this Contract.
- C. Option to Extend: The Time of Performance of this Contract may be extended at negotiated fees, subject to the availability of funds, upon mutual agreement in writing prior to the end of the current Contract. It is understood that a Supplemental Contract (Amendment) will be executed by both the CONTRACTOR and the OHA to exercise any and all extensions.

Initial term of Contract: TWELVE (12) months

Length of each extension: Up to TWELVE (12) months, may be less than

TWELVE (12) months when it is in the best interest

of the OHA

Maximum length of Contract: Not to exceed TWENTY-FOUR (24) months

THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Attachment - S4 OFFICE OF HAWAIIAN AFFAIRS SPECIAL CONDITIONS



GENERAL CONDITIONS

Table of Contents

1.	Coordination of Services by the OHA	3
2.	Relationship of Parties: Independent Contractor Status and Responsibilities, Including Tax	
	Responsibilities	
3.	Personnel Requirements	5
4.	Nondiscrimination	
5.	Conflicts of Interest	5
6.	Subcontracts and assignments	5
7.	Indemnification and Defense	
8.	Cost of Litigation	6
9.	Liquidated Damages	7
	OHA'S Right of Offset	
	Disputes	
	Suspension of Contract	
	Termination for Default	
	Termination for Convenience	
15.	Claims Based on the Agency Procurement Officer's Actions or Omissions	13
	Costs and Expenses	
	Payment Procedures; Final Payment; Tax Clearance	
	Federal Funds	
19.	Modifications of Contract	16
20.	Change Order	17
	Price Adjustment	
	Variation in Quantity for Definite Quantity Contracts	
	Changes in Cost-Reimbursement Contract	
	Confidentiality of Material	
	Publicity	
	Ownership Rights and Copyright	
	Liens and Warranties	
	Audit of Books and Records of the CONTRACTOR	
	Cost or Pricing Data	
	Audit of Cost or Pricing Data	
	Records Retention	
32.	Antitrust Claims	22
	Patented Articles	
	Governing Law	
	Compliance with Laws	
	Conflict between General Conditions and Procurement Rules	
	Entire Contract	
	Severability	
	Waiver	
		24

Attachment 11

41.	Campaign Contributions	24
	Confidentiality of Personal Information	
	Insurance Requirements	

- 1. Coordination of Services by the OHA. The head of the purchasing agency ("HOPA") (which term includes the designee of the HOPA) shall coordinated the services to be provided by the CONTRACTOR in order to complete the performance required in the Contract. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain communications with HOPA at all stages of the CONTRACTORS'S work, and submit to HOPA for resolution any questions which may arise as to the performance of the Contract. "Purchasing agency" as used in these General Conditions means and includes any governmental body which is authorized under chapter 103D, HRS, or its implementing rules and procedures, or by way of delegation, to enter into contracts for the procurement of goods or services or both.
- 2. <u>Relationship of Parties: Independent Contractor Status and Responsibilities, Including Tax</u> Responsibilities.
 - a. In the performance of services required under this Contract, the CONTRACTOR is an "independent contractor," with the authority and responsibility to control and direct the performance and details of the work and services required under this Contract; however, the OHA shall have a general right to inspect work in progress to determine whether, in the OHA'S opinion, the services are being performed by the CONTRACTOR in compliance with this Contract. Unless otherwise provided by special condition, it is understood that the OHA does not agree to use the CONTRACTOR exclusively, and that the CONTRACTOR is free to contract to provide services to other individuals or entities while under contract with the OHA.
 - b. The CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR'S employees and agents are not by reason of this Contract, agents or employees of the OHA for any purpose, and the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR'S employees and agents shall not be entitled to claim or receive from the OHA any vacation, sick leave, retirement, workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, or other benefits provided to OHA employees.
 - c. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and adequacy of the CONTRACTOR'S performance under this Contract. Furthermore, the CONTRACTOR intentionally, voluntarily, and knowingly assumes the sole and entire liability to the CONTRACTOR'S employees and agents, and to any individual not a party to this Contract, for all loss, damage, or injury caused by the CONTRACTOR, or the CONTRACTOR'S employees or agents in the course of their employment.
 - d. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of all applicable federal, state, and county taxes and fees which may become due and owing by the CONTRACTOR

by reason of this Contract, including but not limited to (i) income taxes, (ii) employment related fees, assessments, and taxes, and (iii) general excise taxes. The CONTRACTOR also is responsible for obtaining all licenses, permits, and certificates that may be required in order to perform this Contract.

- e. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain a general excise tax license from the Department of Taxation, State of Hawaii, in accordance with section 237-9, HRS, and shall comply with all requirements thereof. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain a tax clearance certificate from the Director of Taxation, State of Hawaii, and the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Department of the Treasury, showing that all delinquent taxes, if any, levied or accrued under state law and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, against the CONTRACTOR have been paid and submit the same to the OHA prior to commencing any performance under this Contract. The CONTRACTOR shall also be solely responsible for meeting all requirements necessary to obtain the tax clearance certificate required for final payment under sections 103-53 and 103D-328, HRS, and paragraph 17 of these General Conditions.
- f. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for securing all employee-related insurance coverage for the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR'S employees and agents that is or may be required by law, and for payment of all premiums, costs, and other liabilities associated with securing the insurance coverage.
- g. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain a certificate of compliance issued by the Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, State of Hawaii, in accordance with section 103D-310, HRS, and section 3-122-112, HAR, that is current within six months of the date of issuance.
- h. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain a certificate of good standing issued by the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs, State of Hawaii, in accordance with section 103D-310, HRS, and section 3-122-112, HAR, that is current within six months of the date of issuance.
- i. In lieu of the above certificates from the Department of Taxation, Labor and Industrial Relations, and Commerce and Consumer Affairs, the CONTRACTOR may submit proof of compliance through the State Procurement Office's designated certification process.

3. <u>Personnel Requirements.</u>

- a. The CONTRACTOR shall secure, at the CONTRACTOR'S own expense, all personnel required to perform this Contract.
- b. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the CONTRACTOR'S employees or agents are experienced and fully qualified to engage in the activities and perform the services required under this Contract, and that all applicable licensing and operating requirements imposed or required under federal, state, or county law, and all applicable accreditation and other standards of quality generally accepted in the field of the activities of such employees and agents are complied with and satisfied.
- 4. <u>Nondiscrimination.</u> No person performing work under this Contract, including any subcontractor, employee, or agent of the CONTRACTOR, shall engage in any discrimination that is prohibited by any applicable federal, state, or county law.
- 5. <u>Conflicts of Interest.</u> The CONTRACTOR represents that neither the CONTRACTOR, nor any employee or agent of the CONTRACTOR, presently has any interest, and promises that no such interest, direct or indirect, shall be acquired, that would or might conflict in any manner or degree with the CONTRACTOR'S performance under this Contract.
- 6. <u>Subcontracts and Assignments.</u> The CONTRACTOR shall not assign or subcontract any of the CONTRACTOR'S duties, obligations, or interests under this Contract and no such assignment or subcontract shall be effective unless (i) the CONTRACTOR obtains the prior written consent of the OHA, and (ii) the CONTRACTOR'S assignee or subcontractor submits to the OHA a tax clearance certificate from the Director of Taxation, State of Hawaii, and the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Department of Treasury, showing that all delinquent taxes, if any, levied or accrued under state law and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, against the CONTRACTOR'S assignee or subcontractor have been paid. Additionally, no assignment by the CONTRACTOR of the CONTRACTOR'S right to compensation under this Contract shall be effective unless and until the assignment is approved by the Comptroller of the State of Hawaii, as provided in section 40-58, HRS.
 - a. Recognition of a successor in interest. When in the best interest of the OHA, a successor in interest may be recognized in an assignment contract in which the OHA, the CONTRACTOR and the assignee or transferee (hereinafter referred to as the "Assignee") agree that:
 - (1) The Assignee assumes all of the CONTRACTOR'S obligations;

- (2) The CONTRACTOR remains liable for all obligations under this Contract but waives all rights under this Contract as against the OHA; and
- (3) The CONTRACTOR shall continue to furnish, and the Assignee shall also furnish, all required bonds.
- b. <u>Change of name.</u> When the CONTRACTOR asks to change the name in which it holds this Contract with the OHA, the procurement officer of the purchasing agency (hereinafter referred to as the "Agency procurement officer") shall, upon receipt of a document acceptable or satisfactory to the Agency procurement officer indicating such change of name (for example, an amendment to the CONTRACTOR'S articles of incorporation), enter into an amendment to this Contract with the CONTRACTOR to effect such a change of name. The amendment to this Contract changing the CONTRACTOR'S name shall specifically indicate that no other terms and conditions of this Contract are thereby changed.
- c. <u>Reports.</u> All assignment contracts and amendments to this Contract effecting changes of the CONTRACTOR'S name or novations hereunder shall be reported to the chief procurement officer (CPO) as defined in section 103D-203(a), HRS, within thirty days of the date that the assignment contract or amendment becomes effective.
- d. Actions affecting more than one purchasing agency. Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraphs 6a through 6c herein, when the CONTRACTOR holds contracts with more than one purchasing agency of the State, the assignment contracts and the novation and change of name amendments herein authorized shall be processed only through the OHA CPO's office.
- 7. <u>Indemnification and Defense.</u> The CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State of Hawaii and Office of Hawaiian Affairs, the contracting agency, and their officers, employees, and agents from and against all liability, loss, damage, cost, and expense, including all attorneys' fees, and all claims, suits, and demands therefore, arising out of or resulting from the acts or omissions of the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR'S employees, officers, agents, or subcontractors under this Contract. The provisions of this paragraph shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the expiration or early termination of this Contract.
- 8. <u>Cost of Litigation</u>. In case the OHA shall, without any fault on its part, be made a party to any litigation commenced by or against the CONTRACTOR in connection with this

- Contract, the COTNRACTOR shall pay all costs and expenses incurred by or imposed on the OHA, including attorneys' fees.
- 9. <u>Liquidated Damages.</u> When the CONTRACTOR is given notice of delay or nonperformance as specified in paragraph 13 (Termination for Default) and fails to cure in the time specified, it is agreed the CONTRACTOR shall pay to the OHA the amount, if any, set forth in this Contract per calendar day from the date set for cure until either (i) the OHA reasonably obtains similar goods or services, or both, if the CONTRACTOR is terminated for default, or (ii) until the CONTRACTOR provides the goods or services, or both, if the CONTRACTOR Is not terminated for default. To the extent that the CONTRACTOR'S delay or nonperformance is excused under paragraph 13d (Excuse for Nonperformance or Delay Performance), liquidated damages shall not be assessable against the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR remains liable for damages caused other than by delay.
- 10. OHA'S Right of Offset. The OHA may offset against any monies or other obligations the OHA owes to the CONTRACTOR under this Contract, any amounts owed to the State of Hawaii by the CONTRACTOR under this Contract or any other contracts, or pursuant to any law or other obligation owed to the State of Hawaii by the CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, the payment of any taxes or levies of any kind or nature. The OHA will notify the CONTRACTOR in writing of any offset and the nature of such offset. For purposes of this paragraph, amounts owed to the State of Hawaii shall not include debts or obligations which have been liquidated, agreed to by the CONTRACTOR, and are covered by an installment payment or other settlement plan approved by the State of Hawaii, provided, however, that the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to such exclusion only to the extent that the CONTRACTOR is current with, and not delinquent on, any payments or obligations owed to the State of Hawaii under such payment or other settlement plan.
- 11. <u>Disputes.</u> Disputes shall be resolved in accordance with section 103D-703, HRS, and chapter 3-126, Hawaii Administrative Rules ("HAR"), as the same may be amended from time to time.
- 12. <u>Suspension of Contract</u>. The OHA reserves the right at any time and for any reason to suspend this Contract for any reasonable period, upon written notice to the CONTRACTOR in accordance with provisions herein.
 - a. <u>Order to stop performance</u>. The Agency procurement officer may, by written order to the CONTRACTOR, at any time, and without notice to any surety, require the

CONTRACTOR to stop all or any part of the performance called for by this Contract. This order shall be for a specified period not exceeding sixty (60) days after the order is delivered to the CONTRACTOR, unless the parties agree to any further period. Any such order shall be identified specifically as a stop performance order issued pursuant to this section. Stop performance orders shall include, as appropriate: (1) A clear description of the work to be suspended; (2) Instructions as to the issuance of further orders by the CONTRACTOR for material or services; (3) Guidance as to action to be taken on subcontractors; and (4) Other instructions and suggestions to the CONTRACTOR for minimizing costs. Upon receipt of such an order, the CONTRACTOR shall forthwith comply with its terms and suspend all performance under this Contract at the time stated, provided, however, the CONTRACTOR shall take all reasonable steps to minimize the occurrence of costs allocable to the performance covered by the order during the period of performance stoppage. Before the stop performance order expires, or within any further period to which the parties shall have agree, the Agency procurement officer shall either:

- (1) Cancel the stop performance order; or
- (2) Terminate the performance covered by such order as provided in the termination for default provision or the termination for convenience provision of the Contract.
- b. <u>Cancellation or expiration of the order.</u> If a stop performance order issued under this section is cancelled at any time during the period specified in the order, or if the period of the order or any extension thereof expires, the CONTRACTOR shall have the right to resume performance. An appropriate adjustment shall be made in the delivery schedule or contract price, or both, and the Contract shall be modified in writing accordingly, if:
 - (1) The stop performance order results in an increase in the time required for, or in the CONTRACTOR'S cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of this Contract; and
 - (2) The CONTRACTOR asserts a claim for such an adjustment within thirty (30) days after the end of the period of performance stoppage; provided that, if the Agency procurement officer decides that the facts justify such action, any such claim asserted may be received and acted upon at any time prior to final payment under this Contract.

- c. <u>Termination of stopped performance</u>. If a stop performance order is not cancelled and the performance covered by such order is terminated for default or convenience, the reasonable costs resulting from the stop performance order shall be allowable by adjustment or otherwise
- d. <u>Adjustment of price</u>. Any adjustment in contract price made pursuant to this paragraph shall be determined in accordance with the price adjustment provision of this Contract.

13. Termination for Default.

- a. Default. If the CONTRACTOR refuses or fails to perform any of the provisions of this Contract with such diligence as will endure its completion within the time specified in this Contract, or any extension thereof, otherwise fails to timely satisfy the Contract provisions, or commits any other substantial breach of this Contract, the Agency procurement officer may notify the CONTRACTOR in writing of the delay or non-performance and if not cured in ten (10) days or any longer time specified in writing by the Agency procurement officer, such officer may terminate the CONTRACTOR'S right to proceed with the Contract or such part of the Contract as to which there has been delay or a failure to properly perform. In the event of termination in whole or in part, the Agency procurement officer may procure similar goods or services in a manner and upon the terms deemed appropriate by the Agency procurement officer. The CONTRACTOR shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent it is not terminated and shall be liable for excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or services.
- b. <u>CONTRACTOR'S duties.</u> Notwithstanding termination of the Contract and subject to any directions from the Agency procurement officer, the CONTRACTOR shall take timely, reasonable, and necessary action to protect and preserve property in the possession of the CONTRACTOR in which the OHA has an interest.
- c. <u>Compensation.</u> Payment for completed goods and services delivered and accepted by the OHA shall be at the price set forth in the Contract. Payment for the protection and preservation of property shall be in an amount agreed upon by the CONTRACTOR and the Agency procurement officer. If the parties fail to agree, the Agency procurement officer shall set an amount subject to the CONTRACTOR'S rights under chapter 3-126, HAR. The OHA may withhold from amounts due the CONTRACTOR such sums as the Agency procurement officer deems to be necessary to protect the OHA against loss

- because of outstanding liens or claims and to reimburse the OHA for the excess costs expected to be incurred by the OHA in procuring similar goods and services.
- Excuse for nonperformance or delayed performance. The CONTRACTOR shall not be in default by reason of any failure in performance of the Contract in accordance with its terms, including any failure by the CONTRACTOR to make progress in the prosecution of the performance hereunder which endangers such performance, if the CONTRACTOR has notified the Agency procurement officer within fifteen (15) days after the cause of the delay and the failure arises out of causes such as: acts of God; acts of a public enemy; acts of the State and any other governmental body in its sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; strikes or other labor disputes; freight embargoes; or unusually severe weather. If the failure to perform is caused by the failure of a subcontractor to perform or to make progress, and if such failure arises out of causes similar to those set forth above, the CONTRACTOR shall not be deemed to be in default, unless the goods and services to be furnished by the subcontractor were reasonably obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit the CONTRACTOR to meet the requirements of the Contract. Upon request of the CONTRACTOR, the Agency procurement officer shall ascertain the facts and extent of such failure, and if such officer determines that any failure to perform was occasioned by any one or more of the excusable causes, and that, but for the excusable cause, the CONTRACTOR'S progress and performance would have met the terms of the contract, the delivery schedule shall be revised accordingly, subject to the rights of the OHA under this Contract. As used in this paragraph, the term "subcontractor" means subcontractor at any tier.
- e. <u>Erroneous termination for default.</u> If, after notice of termination of the CONTRACTOR'S right to proceed under this paragraph, it is determined for any reason that the CONTRACTOR was not in default under this paragraph, or that the delay was excusable under the provisions of subparagraph 13d, "Excuse for nonperformance or delayed performance," the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to paragraph 14.
- f. <u>Additional rights and remedies</u>. The rights and remedies provided in this paragraph are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.

14. Termination for Convenience.

- a. <u>Termination.</u> The Agency procurement officer may, when the interests of the OHA so require, terminate this Contract in whole or in part, for the convenience of the OHA. The Agency procurement officer shall give written notice of the termination to the CONTRACTOR specifying the part of the Contract terminated and when termination becomes effective.
- b. CONTRACTOR'S obligations. The CONTRACTOR shall incur no further obligations in connection with the terminated performance and on the date(s) set in the notice of termination the CONTRACTOR will stop performance to the extent specified. The CONTRACTOR shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts as they relate to the terminated performance. The CONTRACTOR shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the terminated performance. The CONTRACTOR shall settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and orders connected with the terminated performance subject to the OHA'S approval. The Agency procurement officer may direct the CONTRACTOR to assign the CONTRACTOR'S right, title, and interest under terminated orders or subcontractors to the OHA. The CONTRACTOR must still complete the performance not terminated by the notice of termination and may incur obligations as necessary to do so.
- c. <u>Right to goods and work product.</u> The Agency procurement officer may require the CONTRACTOR to transfer title and deliver to the OHA in the manner and to the extent directed by the Agency procurement officer:
 - (1) Any completed goods or work product; and
 - (2) The partially completed goods and materials, parts, tools, dies, jigs, fixtures, plans, drawings, information, and contract rights (hereinafter called "manufacturing material") as the CONTRACTOR has specifically produced or specially acquired for the performance of the terminated part of this Contract. The CONTRACTOR shall, upon direction of the Agency Procurement officer, protect and preserve property in the possession of the CONTRACTOR in which the OHA has an interest. If the Agency procurement officer does not exercise this right, the CONTRACTOR shall use best efforts to sell such goods and manufacturing materials. Use of this paragraph in no way implies that the OHA has breached the Contract by exercise of the termination for convenience provision.
- d. Compensation.

- (1) The CONTACTOR shall submit a termination claim specifying the amounts due because of the termination for convenience together with the cost or pricing data, submitted to the extent required by chapter 3-122, HAR, bearing on such claim. If the CONTRACTOR fails to file a termination claim within one year from the effective date of termination, the Agency procurement officer may pay the CONTRACTOR, if at all, an amount set in accordance with subparagraph 14d(3) below.
- (2) The Agency procurement officer and the CONTRACTOR may agree to a settlement provided the CONTRACTOR has filed a termination claim supported by cost and pricing data submitted as required and that the settlement does not exceed the total Contract price plus settlement costs reduced by payments previously made by the OHA, the proceeds of any sales of goods and manufacturing materials under subparagraph 14c, and the Contract price of the performance not terminated.
- (3) Absent complete agreement under subparagraph 14d(2) the Agency procurement officer shall pay the CONTRACTOR the following amounts, provided payments agreed to under subparagraph 14d(2) shall not duplicate payments under this subparagraph for the following:
 - (A) Contract prices for goods and services accepted under the Contract;
 - (B) Costs incurred in preparing to perform and performing the terminated portion of the performance plus a fair and reasonable profit on such portion of the performance, such profit shall not include anticipatory profit or consequential damages, less amounts paid or to be paid for accepted goods or services; provided, however, that if it appears that the CONTRACTOR would have sustained a loss if the entire Contract would have been completed, no profit shall be allowed or included and the amount of compensation shall be reduced to reflect the anticipated rate of loss;
 - (C) Cost of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts or orders pursuant to subparagraph 14b. These costs must not include costs paid in accordance with subparagraph 14d(3)(B);
 - (D) The reasonable settlement costs of the CONTRACTOR, including accounting, legal, clerical, and other expenses reasonably necessary for the

preparation of settlement claims and supporting data with respect to the terminated portion of the Contract and for the termination of subcontracts thereunder, together with reasonable storage, transportation, and other costs incurred in connection with the protection or disposition of property allocable to the terminated portion of this Contract. The total sum to be paid the CONTRACTOR under this subparagraph shall not exceed the total Contract price plus the reasonable settlement costs of the CONTRACTOR reduced by the amount of payments otherwise made, the proceeds of any sales of supplies and manufacturing materials under subparagraph 14d(2), and the contract price of performance not terminated.

(4) Costs claimed, agreed to, or established under subparagraphs 14d(2) and 14d(3) shall be in accordance with Chapter 3-123 (Cost Principles) of the Procurement Rules.

15. Claims Based on the Agency Procurement Officer's Actions or Omissions.

- a. <u>Changes in scope.</u> If any action or omission on the part of the Agency procurement officer (which term includes the designee of such officer for purposes of this paragraph 15) requiring performance changes within the scope of the Contract constitutes the basis for a claim by the CONTRACTOR for additional compensation, damages, or an extension of time for completion, the CONTRACTOR shall continue with performance of the Contract in compliance with the directions or orders of such officials, but by so doing, the CONTRACTOR shall not be deemed to have prejudiced any claim for additional compensation, damages, or an extension of time for completion; provided:
 - (1) <u>Written notice required.</u> The CONTRACTOR shall give written notice to the Agency procurement officer:
 - (A) Prior to the commencement of the performance involved, if at that time the CONTRACTOR knows of the occurrence of such action or omission;
 - (B) Within thirty (30) days after the CONTRACTOR knows of the occurrence of such action or omission, if the CONTRACTOR did not have such knowledge prior to the commencement of the performance; or
 - (C) Within such further time as may be allowed by the Agency procurement officer in writing.

- (2) Notice content. This notice shall state that the CONTRACTOR regards the act or omission as a reason which may entitle the CONTRACTOR to additional compensation, damages, or an extension of time. The Agency procurement officer, upon receipt of such notice, may rescind such action, remedy such omission, or take such other steps as may be deemed advisable in the discretion of the Agency procurement officer;
- (3) <u>Basis must be explained.</u> The notice required by subparagraph 15a(1) describes as clearly as practicable at the time the reasons why the CONTRACTOR believes that additional compensation, damages, or an extension of time may be remedies to which the CONTRACTOR is entitled; and
- (4) <u>Claim must be justified.</u> The CONTRACTOR must maintain and, upon request, make available to the Agency procurement officer within a reasonable time, detailed records to the extent practicable, and other documentation and evidence satisfactory to the OHA, justifying the claimed additional costs or an extension of time in connection with such changes.
- b. <u>CONTRACTOR not excused.</u> Nothing herein contained, however, shall excuse the CONTRACTOR from compliance with any rules or laws precluding any OHA officers and CONTRACTOR from acting in collusion or bad faith in issuing or performing change orders which are clearly not within the scope of the Contract.
- c. <u>Price adjustment</u>. Any adjustment in the price made pursuant to this paragraph shall be determined in accordance with the price adjustment provision of this Contract.
- 16. <u>Costs and Expenses.</u> Any reimbursement due the CONTRACTOR for per diem and transportation expenses under this Contract shall be subject to chapter 3-123 (Cost Principles), HAR, and the following guidelines:
 - a. Reimbursement for air transportation shall be for actual cost or coach class air fare, whichever is less.
 - b. Reimbursement for ground transportation costs shall not exceed the actual cost of renting an intermediate-sized vehicle.

c. Unless prior written approval of the HOPA is obtained, reimbursement for subsistence allowance (i.e., hotel and meals, etc.) shall not exceed the applicable daily authorized rates for inter-island or out-of-state travel that are set forth in the current Governor's Executive Order authorizing adjustments in salaries and benefits for OHA officers and employees who are excluded from collective bargaining coverage.

17. Payment Procedures; Final Payment; Tax Clearance.

- a. <u>Original invoices required.</u> All payments under this Contract shall be made only upon submission by the CONTRACTOR of original invoices specifying the amount due and certifying that services requested under the Contract have been performed by the CONTRACTOR according to the Contract.
- b. <u>Subject to available funds.</u> Such payments are subject to availability of funds and allotment by the Director of Finance in accordance with chapter 37, HRS. Further, all payments shall be made in accordance with and subject to chapter 40, HRS.

c. <u>Prompt payment.</u>

- (1) Any money, other than retainage, paid to the CONTRACTOR shall be disbursed to subcontractors within ten (10) days after receipt of the money in accordance with the terms of the subcontract; provided that the subcontractor has met all the terms and conditions of the subcontract and there are no bona fide disputes; and
- (2) Upon final payment to the CONTRACTOR, full payment to the subcontractor, including retainage, shall be made within ten (10) days after receipt of the money; provided that there are no bona fide disputes over the subcontractor's performance under the subcontract.
- d. <u>Final payment.</u> Final payment under this Contract shall be subject to sections 103-53 and 103D-328, HRS, which require a tax clearance from the Director of Taxation, State of Hawaii, and the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Department of Treasury, showing that all delinquent taxes, if any, levied or accrued under state law and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, against the CONTRACTOR have been paid. Further, in accordance with section 3-122-112, HAR, CONTRACTOR shall provide a certificate affirming that the CONTRACTOR has remained in compliance with all applicable laws as required by this section.

18. <u>Federal Funds.</u> If this Contract is payable in whole or in part from federal funds, CONTRACTOR agrees that, as to the portion of the compensation under this Contract to be payable from federal funds, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid only from such funds received from the federal government, and shall not be paid from any other funds. Failure of the OHA to received anticipated federal funds shall not be considered a breach by the OHA or an excuse for nonperformance by the CONTRACTOR.

19. Modifications of Contract.

- a. <u>In writing.</u> Any modification, alteration, amendment, change, or extension of any term, provision, or condition of this Contract permitted by this Contract shall be made by written amendment to this Contract, signed by the CONTRACTOR and the OHA, provided that change orders shall be made in accordance with paragraph 20 herein.
- b. <u>No oral modification.</u> No oral modification, alteration, amendment, change, or extension of any term, provision, or condition of the Contract shall be permitted.
- c. <u>Agency procurement officer</u>. By written order, at any time, and without notice to any surety, the Agency Procurement officer may unilaterally order of the CONTRACTOR:
 - (A) Changes in the work within the scope of the Contract; and
 - (B) Changes in the time of performance of the Contract that do not alter the scope of the Contract work.
- d. Adjustments of price or time for performance. If any modification increases or decreases the CONTRACTOR'S cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the work under this Contract, an adjustment shall be made and this Contract modified in writing accordingly. Any adjustment in contract price made pursuant to this clause shall be determined, where applicable, in accordance with the price adjustment clause of this Contract or as negotiated.
- e. <u>Claim barred after final payment.</u> No claim by the CONTRACTOR for an adjustment hereunder shall be allowed if written modification of the Contract is not made prior to final payment under this Contract.

- f. <u>Claims not barred.</u> In the absence of a written contract modification, nothing in this clause shall be deemed to restrict the CONTRACTOR'S right to pursue a claim under this Contract or for a breach of contract.
- g. <u>Head of the purchasing agency approval.</u> If this is a professional services contract awarded pursuant to section 103D-303 or 103D-304, HRS, any modification, alteration, amendment, change, or extension of any term, provision, or condition of this Contract which increases the amount payable to the CONTRACTOR by at least \$25,000.00 and ten per cent (10%) or more of the initial contract price, must receive the prior approval of the head of the purchasing agency.
- h. <u>Tax clearance.</u> The STATE may, at its discretion, require the CONTRACTOR to submit to the STATE, prior to the STATE'S approval of any modification, alteration, amendment, change, or extension of any term, provision, or condition of this Contract, a tax clearance from the Director of Taxation, State of Hawaii, and the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Department of Treasury, showing that all delinquent taxes, if any, levied or accrued under state law and the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, against the CONTRACTOR have been paid.
- i. <u>Sole source contracts.</u> Amendments to sole source contracts that would change the original scope of the Contract may only be made with the approval of the CPO. Annual renewal of sole source contact for services should not be submitted as an amendment.
- 20. <u>Change Order.</u> The Agency procurement officer may, by a written order signed only by the OHA, at any time, and without notice to any surety, and subject to all appropriate adjustments, make changes within the general scope of this Contract in any one or more of the following:
 - (1) Drawings, designs, or specifications, if the goods or services to be furnished are to be specially provided to the OHA in accordance therewith;
 - (2) Method of delivery; or
 - (3) Place of delivery.
 - a. <u>Adjustments of price or time for performance.</u> If any change order increases or decreases the CONTACTOR'S cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the work under this Contract, whether or not changed by the order, an adjustment shall be made and the Contract modified in writing accordingly. Any

adjustment in the Contract price made pursuant to this provision shall be determined in accordance with the price adjustment provision of this Contract. Failure of the parties to agree to an adjustment shall not excuse the CONTRACTOR from proceeding with the Contract as changed, provided that the Agency procurement officer promptly and duly makes the provisional adjustments in payment or time for performance as may be reasonable. By proceeding with the work, the CONTRACTOR shall not be deemed to have prejudiced any claim for additional compensation, or any extension of time for completion.

- b. Time period for claim. Within ten (10) days after receipt of a written change order under subparagraph 20a, unless the period is extended by the Agency procurement officer in writing, the CONTRACTOR shall respond with a claim for an adjustment. The requirement for a timely written response by CONTRACTOR cannot be waived and shall be a condition precedent to the assertion of a claim.
- c. Claim barred after final payment. No claim by the CONTRACTOR for an adjustment hereunder shall be allowed if a written response is not given prior to final payment under this Contract.
- d. Other claims not barred. In the absence of a change order, nothing in this paragraph 20 shall be deemed to restrict the CONTRACTOR'S right to pursue a claim under the Contract or for breach of contract.

21. Price Adjustment.

- a. Price adjustment. Any adjustment in the contract price pursuant to a provision in this Contract shall be made in one or more of the following ways:
 - (1) By agreement on a fixed price adjustment before commencement of the pertinent performance or as soon thereafter as practicable;
 - (2) By unit prices specified in the Contract or subsequently agreed upon;
 - (3) By the costs attributable to the event or situation covered by the provision, plus appropriate profit or fee, all as specified in the Contract or subsequently agreed upon;
 - (4) In such a manner as the parties may mutually agree; or

- (5) In the absence of agreement between the parties, by a unilateral determination by the Agency procurement officer of the costs attributable to the event or situation covered by the provision, plus appropriate profit or fee, all as computed by the Agency procurement officer in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable sections of chapters 3-123 and 3-126, HAR.
- b. Submission of cost or pricing data. The CONTRACTOR shall provide cost or pricing data for any price adjustments subject to the provisions of chapter 3-122, HAR.
- 22. Variation in Quantity for Definite Quantity Contracts. Upon the agreement of the OHA and the CONTRACTOR, the quantity of goods or services, or both, if a definite quantity is specified in this Contract, may be increased by a maximum of ten per cent (10%); provided the unit prices will remain the same except for any price adjustments otherwise applicable; and the Agency procurement officer makes a written determination that such an increase will either be more economical than awarding another contract or that it would not be practical to award another contract.
- 23. Changes in Cost-Reimbursement Contract. If this Contract is a cost-reimbursement contract, the following provisions shall apply:
 - a. The Agency procurement officer may at any time by written order, and without notice to the sureties, if any, make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:
 - (1) Description of performance (Attachment 1);
 - (2) Time of performance (i.e., hours of the day, days of the week, etc.);
 - (3) Place of performance services;
 - (4) Drawings, designs, or specifications when the supplies to be furnished are to be specially manufactured for the OHA in accordance with the drawings, designs, or specifications;
 - (5) Method of shipment or packing of supplies; or
 - (6) Place of delivery.

- b. If any change causes an increase or decrease in the estimated cost of, or the time required for performance of, any part of the performance under this Contract, whether or not changed by the order, or otherwise affects any other terms and conditions of this Contract, the Agency procurement officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the (1) estimated cost, delivery or completion schedule, or both; (2) amount of any fixed fee; and (3) other affected terms and shall modify the Contract accordingly.
- c. The CONTACTOR must assert the CONTRACTOR'S rights to an adjustment under this provision within thirty (30) days from the day of receipt of the written order. However, if the Agency procurement officer decides that the facts justify it, the Agency procurement officer may receive and act upon a proposal submitted before final payment under the Contract.
- d. Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under paragraph 11 of this Contract. However, nothing in this provision shall excuse the CONTRACTOR from proceeding with the Contract as changed.
- e. Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of subparagraphs 23a and 23b, the estimated cost of this Contract and, if this Contract is incrementally funded, the funds allotted for the performance of this contract, shall not be increased or considered to be increased except by specific written modification of the Contract indicating the new contract estimated cost and, if this contract is incrementally funded, the new amount allotted to the contact.

24. Confidentiality of Material.

- a. All material given to or made available to the CONTRACTOR by virtue of this Contract, which is identified as proprietary or confidential information, will be safeguarded by the CONTRACTOR and shall not be disclosed to any individual or organization without the prior written approval of the OHA.
- b. All information, data, or other material provided by the CONTRACTOR to the OHA shall be subject to the Uniform Information Practices Act, chapter 92F, HRS.
- 25. <u>Publicity.</u> The CONTRACTOR shall not refer to the OHA, or any office, agency, or officer thereof, or any OHA employee, including the HOPA, the CPO, the Agency procurement officer, or to the services or goods, or both, provided under this Contract, in any of the CONTRACTOR'S brochures, advertisements, or other publicity of the CONTRACTOR.

All media contracts with the CONTRACTOR about the subject matter of this Contract shall be referred to the Agency procurement officer.

- 26. Ownership Rights and Copyright. The OHA shall have complete ownership of all material, both finished and unfinished, which is developed, prepared, assembled, or conceived by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Contract, and all such material shall be considered "works made for hire." All such material shall be delivered to the OHA upon expiration or termination of this Contract. The OHA, in its sole discretion, shall have the exclusive right to copyright any product, concept, or material developed, prepared, assembled, or conceived by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Contract.
- 27. <u>Liens and Warranties.</u> Goods provided under this Contract shall be provided free of all liens and provided together with all applicable warranties, or with the warranties described in the Contract documents, whichever are greater.
- 28. <u>Audit of Books and Records of the CONTRACTOR</u>. The OHA may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of the CONTRACTOR, prospective contractor, subcontractor, or prospective subcontractor which are related to:
 - a. The cost or pricing data, and
 - b. A OHA contract, including subcontracts, other than a firm fixed-price contract.
- 29. Cost or Pricing Data. Cost or pricing data must be submitted to the Agency procurement officer and timely certified as accurate for contracts over \$100,000 unless the contract is for a multiple-term or as otherwise specified by the Agency procurement officer. Unless otherwise required by the Agency procurement officer, cost or pricing data submission is not required for contracts awarded pursuant to competitive sealed bid procedures.

If certified cost or pricing data are subsequently found to have been inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent as of the date stated in the certificate, the OHA is entitled to an adjustment of the contract price, including profit or fee, to exclude any significant sum by which the price, including profit or fee, was increased because of the defective data. It is presumed that overstated cost or pricing data increased the contract price in the amount of the defect plus related overhead and profit or fee. Therefore, unless there is clear indication that the defective data was not used or relied upon, the price will be reduced in such amount.

30. <u>Audit of Cost or Pricing Data.</u> When cost or pricing principles are applicable, the OHA may require an audit of cost or pricing data.

31. Records Retention.

- (1) Upon any termination of this Contract or as otherwise required by applicable law, CONTRACTOR shall, pursuant to chapter 487R, HRS, destroy all copies (paper or electronic form) of personal information received from the OHA.
- (2) The CONTRACTOR an any subcontractors shall maintain the files, books, and records that relate to the Contract, including any personal information created or received by the CONTRACTOR on behalf of the OHA, and any cost or pricing data, for at least three (3) years after the date of final payment under the Contract. The personal information shall continue to be confidential and shall only be disclosed as permitted or required by law. After the three (3) year, or longer retention period as required by law has ended, the files, books, and records that contain personal information shall be destroyed pursuant to chapter 487R, HRS or returned to the OHA at the request of the OHA.
- 32. Antitrust Claims. The OHA and the CONTRACTOR recognize that in actual economic practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are in fact usually borne by the purchaser. Therefore, the CONTRACTOR hereby assigns to OHA any and all claims for overcharges as to goods and materials purchase in connection with this Contract, except as to overcharges which result from violations commencing after the price is established under this Contract and which are not passed on to the OHA under an escalation clause.
- 33. Patented Articles. The CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the OHA, and its officers, employees, and agents from and against all liability, loss, damage, cost, and expense, including all attorneys fees, and all claims, suits, and demands arising out of or resulting from any claims, demands, or actions by the patent holder for infringement or other improper or unauthorized use of any patented article, patented process, or patented appliance in connection with this Contract. The CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for correcting or curing to the satisfaction of the OHA any such infringement or improper or unauthorized use, including, without limitation: (a) furnishing at no cost to the OHA a substitute article, process, or appliance acceptable to the OHA, (b) paying royalties or other required payments to the patent holder, (c) obtaining proper authorizations or releases from the patent holder, and (d) furnishing such security to or making such arrangements with the

- patent holder as may be necessary to correct or cure any such infringement or improper or unauthorized use.
- 34. Governing Law. The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties to this Contract, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Hawaii. Any action at law or in equity to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Contract shall be brought in a state court of competent jurisdiction in Honolulu, Hawaii.
- 35. <u>Compliance with Laws.</u> The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, and county laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations, as the same may be amended from time to time, that in any way affect the CONTRACTOR'S performance of this Contract.
- 36. <u>Conflict Between General Conditions and Procurement Rules.</u> In the event of a conflict between the General Conditions and the procurement rules, the procurement rules in effect on the date this Contract became effective shall control and are hereby incorporated by reference.
- 37. Entire Contract. This Contact sets forth all of the agreements, conditions, understandings, promises, warranties, and representations between the OHA and the CONTRACTOR relative to this contract. This Contract supersedes all prior agreements, conditions, understandings, promises, warranties, and representations, which shall have no further force or effect. There are no agreements, conditions, understandings, promises, warranties, or representations, oral or written, express or implies, between the OHA and the CONTRACTOR other than as set forth or as referred to herein.
- 38. <u>Severability.</u> In the event that any provision of the Contract is declared invalid or unenforceable by a court, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms of this Contract.
- 39. Waiver. The failure of the OHA to insist upon the strict compliance with any term, provision, or condition of this Contract shall not constitute or be deemed to constitute a waiver or relinquishment of the OHA'S right to enforce the same in accordance with this Contract. The fact that the OHA specifically refers to one provision of the procurement rules or one section of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, and does not include other provisions or statutory sections in this Contract shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment of the OHA'S rights or the CONTRACTOR'S obligations under the procurement rules or statutes.

- 40. <u>Pollution Control.</u> If during the performance of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR encounters a "release" or a "threatened release" of a reportable quantity of a "hazardous substance," "pollutant," or "contaminant" as those terms are defined in section 128D-1, HRS, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the OHA and all other appropriate state, county, or federal agencies as required by law. The Contractor shall take all necessary actions, including stopping work, to avoid causing, contributing to, or making worse a release of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant, and shall promptly obey any orders the Environmental Protection Agency or the state Department of Health issues in response to the release. In the event there is an ensuing cease-work period, and the OHA determines that this Contract requires an adjustment of the time for performance, the Contract shall be modified in writing accordingly.
- 41. <u>Campaign Contributions</u>. The CONTRACTOR is hereby notified of the applicability of 11-355, HRS, which states that campaign contributions are prohibited from the specified state or county government contractors during the terms of their contracts if the contractors are paid with funds appropriated by a legislative body.

42. Confidentiality of Person Information.

a. Definitions.

"Personal information" means an individual's first name or first initial and last name in combination with any one or more of the following data elements, when either name or data elements are not encrypted:

- (1) Social security number;
- (2) Driver's license number or Hawaii identification card number; or
- (3) Account number, credit or debit card number, access code, or password that would permit access to an individual's financial information.

Personal information does not include publicly available information that is lawfully made available to the general public from federal, state, or local government records.

"Technological safeguards" means the technology and the policy and procedures for use of the technology to protect and control access to personal information.

b. Confidentiality of Material.

- (1) All material given to or made available to the CONTRACTOR by the OHA by virtue of this Contract which is identified as personal information, shall be safeguarded by the CONTRACTOR and shall not be disclosed without the prior written approval of the OHA.
- (2) CONTRACTOR agrees not to retain, use, or disclose personal information for any purpose other than as permitted or required by this Contract.
- (3) CONTRACTOR agrees to implement appropriate "technological safeguards" that are acceptable to the OHA to reduce the risk of unauthorized access to personal information.
- (4) CONTRACTOR shall report to the OHA in a prompt and complete manner any security breaches involving personal information.
- (5) CONTRACTOR agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to CONTRACTOR because of a use or disclosure of personal information by CONTRACTOR in violation of the requirements of this paragraph.
- (6) CONTRACTOR shall complete and retain a log of all disclosures made of personal information received from the OHA, or personal information created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the OHA.
- c. Security Awareness Training and Confidentiality Agreements.
 - (1) CONTRACTOR certifies that all of its employees who will have access to the personal information have completed training on security awareness topics relating to protecting personal information.
 - (2) CONTRACTOR certifies that confidentiality agreements have been signed by all of its employees who will have access to the personal information acknowledging that:
 - (A) The personal information collected, used, or maintained by the CONTRACTOR will be treated as confidential;

- (B) Access to the personal information will be allowed only as necessary to perform the Contract; and
- (C) Use of personal information will be restricted to uses consistent with the services subject to this Contract.
- d. <u>Termination for Cause</u>. In addition to any other remedies provided for by this Contract, if the OHA learns of a material breach by CONTRACTOR of this paragraph by CONTRACTOR, the OHA may at its sole discretion:
 - (1) Provide an opportunity for the CONTRACTOR to cure the breach or end the violation; or
 - (2) Immediately terminate this Contract.

In either instance, the CONTRACTOR and the OHA shall follow chapter 487N, HRS, with respect to notification of a security breach of personal information.

e. Records Retention.

- (1) Upon any termination of this Contract or as otherwise required by applicable law, CONTRACTOR shall, pursuant to chapter 487R, HRS, destroy all copies (paper or electronic form) of personal information received from the OHA.
- (2) The CONTRACTOR and any subcontractors shall maintain the files, books, and records that relate to the Contract, including any personal information created or received by the CONTRACTOR on behalf of the OHA, and any cost or pricing data, for at least three (3) years after the date of final payment under the Contract. The personal information shall continue to be confidential and shall only be disclosed as permitted or required by law. After the three (3) year, or longer retention period as required by law has ended, the files, books, and records that contain personal information shall be destroyed pursuant to chapter 487R, HRS or returned to the OHA at the request of the OHA.

43. Insurance Requirements

a. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain acceptable to the OHA in full force and effect throughout the term of this Contract. the Policies of insurance maintained by the CONTRACTOR shall provide the following coverages:

Coverage	Limit
Commercial General Liabilit	y \$2,000,000 single limits per occurrence for bodily injury and personal property damage.
Personal Injury Liability	\$1,000,000 single limits per occurrence \$2,000,000 for general aggregate
Automobile Insurance cover All owned, non-owned and hautomobiles.	
Workers Compensation as required bylaws of the State Hawaii	Insurance to include Employer's Liability. Both such coverages shall apply to all employees of the CONTRACTOR and (in case any subcontractor fails to provide adequate similar protection for all its employees) to all employees of sub-contractors
Professional Liability (Errors Omissions)	s and \$1,000,000 per claim \$2,000,000 annual aggregate

- b. The State of Hawaii, the OHA, its elected and appointed officials, employees, and volunteers are added as additional insured with respect operation performed under this Contract. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the OHA before the effective date of the Contract, certificate(s) of insurance necessary to satisfy the OHA that the insurance provision of this Contract have been complied with and to keep such insurance in effect and the certificate(s) therefore on deposit with the OHA during the entire term of this Contract. The minimum insurance required shall be in full compliance with the Hawaii Insurance Code throughout the entire term of the Contract, including supplemental contracts. Upon request by the OHA, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish a copy of the policy or policies.
- c. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to provide and keep in force such insurance shall be regarded as a material default under this Contract, entitling the OHA to exercise any or all the remedies provided in this Contract for default of the CONTRACTOR.
- d. The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit the CONTRACTOR's liability hereunder or to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this Contract. Notwithstanding said policy or policies of insurance, the CONTRACTOR shall be obliged for the full and total amount of damage, injury, or loss cause by negligence or neglect connected with this Contract.

- e. To satisfy the minimum coverage limits required by this Contract, the Successful Offeror may use an umbrella policy in addition to the mandatory insurance policies (i.e. General Liability insurance, Automobile Insurance, and Workers' Compensation) provided that the OHA approves, and the umbrella policy follows the underlying coverage forms
- f. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the OHA in writing of any cancellation or change in provision thirty calendar days prior to the effective date of such cancellation or change.
- g. The OHA is a self-insured semi-autonomous STATE agency. The CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary. Any insurance maintained by the State of Hawaii and OHA shall apply in excess of, and shall not contribute with, insurance provided by the CONTRACTOR.

Years 2019 and 2020 Holidays to be observed by the HAWAII STATE GOVERNMENT

www.dhrd.hawaii.gov

Website where State Holiday Schedule posted

Year	2019	HAWAII	STATE	HOI	IDAYS

(Hawaii Rev. Statutes, Sec. 8-1) New Year's Day	Day Observed in 2019Jan. 1 Tuesday	Official Date Designated in Statute/Constitution The first day in January
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day	Jan. 21 Monday	The third Monday in January
Presidents' Day	Feb. 18 Monday	The third Monday in February
Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole Day	Mar. 26 Tuesday	The twenty-sixth day in March
Good Friday	April 19 Friday	The Friday preceding Easter Sunday
Memorial Day	May 27 Monday	The last Monday in May
King Kamehameha I Day	June 11 Tuesday	The eleventh day in June
Independence Day	July 4 Thursday	The fourth day in July
Statehood Day	Aug. 16 Friday	The third Friday in August
Labor Day	Sept. 2 Monday	The first Monday in September
Veterans' Day	Nov. 11 Monday	The eleventh day in November
Thanksgiving	Nov. 28 Thursday	The fourth Thursday in November
Christmas	Dec. 25 Wednesday	The twenty-fifth day in December

Year 2020 HAWAII STATE HOLIDAYS

	(Hawaii Rev. Statutes, Sec. 8-1) New Year's Day		Official Date Designated in Statute/Constitution The first day in January
	Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day	Jan. 20 Monday	The third Monday in January
	Presidents' Day	Feb. 17 Monday	The third Monday in February
	Prince Jonah Kuhio Kalanianaole Day	Mar. 26 Thursday	The twenty-sixth day in March
	Good Friday	April 10 Friday	The Friday preceding Easter Sunday
	Memorial Day	May 25 Monday	The last Monday in May
	King Kamehameha I Day	June 11 Thursday	The eleventh day in June
	Independence Day	July 3 Friday	The fourth day in July
	Statehood Day	Aug. 21 Friday	The third Friday in August
	Labor Day	Sept. 7 Monday	The first Monday in September
	General Election Day Monday of even numbered years. (Hawa	•	The first Tuesday in Nov. following the first ? – Section)
	Veterans' Day	Nov. 11 Wednesday	The eleventh day in November
	Thanksgiving	Nov. 26 Thursday	The fourth Thursday in November
	Christmas	Dec. 25 Friday	. The twenty-fifth day in December
1			

FOOTNOTES: For use solely by State government agencies. Federal government and local banking holidays may differ. For State agencies that operate on other than Monday-Friday 7:45 AM to 4:30 PM schedules, also refer to appropriate collective bargaining agreements. Created by the Department of Human Resources Development 2/28/2018 subject to change.

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE FOR FINAL PAYMENT (Reference §3-122-112, HAR)

Reference:			
	(Contract Number)	(IFB/RFP Number)	
			affirms it is in
	Company Name)		
compliance	with all laws, as applicable, gov	erning doing business in th	e State of Hawaii to
include the t		0 0	
morado tiro	ionownig.		
1.	Chapter 383, HRS, Hawaii Er Insurance:	mployment Security Law –	Unemployment
2.	Chapter 386, HRS, Worker's	Compensation Law:	
3.	Chapter 392, HRS, Temporal	,	
4.	Chapter 393, HRS, Prepaid H	lealth Care Act; and	
	ness Registration Division.		
Moreover, _			
	(Compa es that making a false statemer from future awards of contracts.		n and may cause its
Signature: _			
Print Name:			
Title:			
Date:			